
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

REGULAR MEETING OF THE 
BARTLESVILLE CITY COUNCIL 

 
Monday, April 1, 2024  

5:30 p.m. 
 

Mayor Dale Copeland 
918-338-4282 

 

City Hall, Council Chambers 
401 S. Johnstone Avenue 
Bartlesville, OK 74003 

 
 

AGENDA 
 

1. Call to order the business meeting of the Bartlesville City Council by Mayor Copeland. 
 

2. Roll call and establishment of a quorum. 
 

3. The invocation will be provided by Pastor Stephen Carl, First Presbyterian Church. 
 

4. Citizens to be heard. 
 

5. City Council Announcements and Proclamations. 
• Donate Life Month – April 2024 
• Autism Awareness & Acceptance Month – April 2024 
• Child Abuse Prevention Month – April 2024 
• Civitan Awareness Month – April 2024 
• Heartland District of Pilot International Day – April 20, 2024 

 
6. Authorities, Boards, Commissions and Committee Openings  

• One opening on the Bartlesville Area History Museum Trust Authority 
• One opening on the Sewer System Improvement Oversight Committee 
• One opening on Visit Bartlesville (Bartlesville Convention & Visitor’s Bureau Board of Directors) 

 
7. Consent Docket 

a. Approval of Minutes 
i. The Regular Meeting Minutes of March 4, 2024. 

 
b. Approval or Ratification of Appointments to Authorities, Boards, Commissions, and 

Committees. 
i. Appointment of Ms. Andrea McCollough, Mr. Brent Butler, and Mr. Dean Costales to three-

year terms each on the Adams Golf Course Operating Committee at the recommendation of 
Councilman Dorsey. 

. 
 c. Approval of Resolutions 
  i. A Resolution of the City of Bartlesville naming 5th Street from Delaware Avenue to Shawnee 

Avenue the honorary name of “Jim Hess Boulevard”. 
  ii. A Resolution approving and accepting the Fiscal Year 2021 Community Development Block 

Grant (CDBG) Small Cities Set-Aside Program project, Contract No. 18261, for Fifth Street 
sidewalk and street improvements as complete. 

  iii.  A Resolution accepting a grant offer in the amount of $585,146.00 from the Federal Aviation 
Administration for Airport Improvement Project (AIP 3-40-0007-018-2024) at Bartlesville 



 
 
 

Municipal Airport for “Construct Taxilane” and authorize the Mayor to execute the Grant 
Agreement and all necessary documents, upon receipt from FAA. 

  iv.  A Resolution accepting a grant offer in the amount of $154,854.00 from the Federal Aviation 
Administration for Airport Improvement Project (AIP 3-40-0007-019-2024) at Bartlesville 
Municipal Airport for “Construct Taxilane” and authorize the Mayor to execute the Grant 
Agreement and all necessary documents, upon receipt from FAA. 

  v. A Resolution amending the budget of the City of Bartlesville for Fiscal Year 2023-24 
appropriating unbudgeted revenue from the General Fund. 

  vi. A Resolution amending the budget of the City of Bartlesville for Fiscal Year 2023-24 
appropriating unbudgeted revenue for the Health Insurance Fund. 

   
 d. Approval of Agreements, Contracts, Engagement Letters, Change Orders, Memorandums 

of Understanding, and Grant Applications. 
  i. Interlocal Agreement between the Washington County Commissioners of Washington 

County, Oklahoma and the City of Bartlesville, Oklahoma to jointly move forward in meeting 
the requirements of the State’s strategic plan for Next Generation 911 Services.  

  ii.   Interlocal Agreement between the Board of County Commissioners of Washington County, 
Oklahoma and the City of Bartlesville to provide the ability to work on joint projects together. 

  iii. Annual Agreement between the City of Bartlesville and Richard Kane YMCA for 
management and operation of Sooner and Frontier pools. 

  iv.  Lease Agreement between the City of Bartlesville/Municipal Airport and Artesian Bottleless 
Water to lease a water machine for the airport terminal lobby. 

  v.   Approve submission of a grant application to the Oklahoma Department of Aerospace and 
Aeronautics (ODAA) for a grant to fund the project to Construct Taxilanes at Bartlesville 
Municipal Airport. 

     
 e. Receipt of Financials 
  i. Interim Financials for eight months ending February 29, 2024. 
 
 f.  Receipt of Bartlesville NEXT Report 
  i. Bartlesville NEXT Progress Report – April 2024 
 
 g. Receipt of Bids 
  i. Bid No. 2023-2024-014 for Construct Taxilane, Bartlesville Municipal Airport 
  ii. Bid No. 2023-2024-015 for Battery Operated Jaws and Cutter Set, with Battery and Charger 

for Vehicle Extrication 
 

8. Discuss and take possible action to award Bid No. 2023-2024-014 for Construct Taxilane, 
Bartlesville Airport. Presented by Councilmember Roane. 
 

9. Discuss and take possible action to award Bid No. 2023-2024-015 for Battery Operated Jaws 
and Cutter Set, with Battery and Charger for Vehicle Extrication. Presented by Mayor 
Copeland. 

 
10. Discuss and take possible action to adopt an Ordinance amending Chapter 17, Streets, 

Sidewalks, and Other Public Places, Article IV, Sidewalks, of the Bartlesville Municipal Code 
concerning the construction of sidewalks. Presented by Larry R. Curtis, Director, Community 
Development Department. 

 
11. New Business. 

 
12. City Manager and Staff Reports.   

 



 
 
 

13. City Council Comments and Inquiries. 
 

14. Adjournment. 
 

The Agenda was received and filed in the Office of the City Clerk and posted in prominent public 
view at City Hall at 5:30 p.m. on Thursday, March 28, 2024. 
 
Jason Muninger    /s/ Elaine Banes 
Jason Muninger, City Clerk/CFO    by Elaine Banes, Deputy City Clerk 
 
 
 
City of Bartlesville Website: https://www.cityofbartlesville.org/city-government/city-council/meeting-agendas/ 
Live Streaming: https://www.cityofbartlesville.org/city-government/city-council/webcast/ 
Sparklight: Channel 56 
  

 Open Meetings Act Compliance (25 O.S. Sec. 301 et seq.): all discussion items are subject to possible action by the City Council. Official 
action can only be taken on items which appear on the agenda. The City Council may adopt, approve, ratify, deny, defer, recommend, amend, 
strike, or continue any agenda item. When more information is needed to act on an item, the City Council may refer the matter to the City 
Manager, Staff or City Attorney, or back to a committee or other recommending body. Under certain circumstance, items are deferred to a 
specific later date or stricken from the agenda entirely. Agenda items requiring a public hearing as required by law will be so noted. The City 
Council may at their discretion change the order of the business agenda items. City of Bartlesville encourages participation from all its citizens. 
If participation at any public meeting is not possible due to a disability, notification to the City Clerk at least one working day prior to the 
scheduled meeting is encouraged to make the necessary accommodations. The City may waive this rule if signing is not the necessary 
accommodation. 

https://www.cityofbartlesville.org/city-government/city-council/meeting-agendas/
https://www.cityofbartlesville.org/city-government/city-council/webcast/


 

 

 
 

 

Official Proclamation 
 

Donate Life Month – April 2024 
 
WHEREAS, one of the most meaningful gifts that a human being can bestow upon another is 
the gift of life; and  
 
WHEREAS, approximately 559 Oklahomans received a life-saving or enhancing organ 
transplant last year, and 
 
WHEREAS, a new patient is added to the national patient transplant list every 9 minutes, and 
 
WHEREAS, over 106,000 men, women, and children are currently on the national waiting list 
for organ transplantation, with more than 600 in the Oklahoma; and 
 
WHEREAS, an average of 17 people died each day last year awaiting an organ transplant that 
did not come in time; and 
 
WHEREAS, Oklahoma has a registry system allowing all residents to register their wish to save 
lives through organ and tissue donation at registerme.org/campaign/btph or by calling toll-free 1-
888-580-5680 or have a heart put on their driver’s license; and 
 
WHEREAS, the LifeShare Transplant Donor Services of Oklahoma is the nonprofit organization 
formed to educate Northeastern Oklahoma residents about donation, increase the number of 
registered organ donors and eliminate barriers to donation; and 
 
WHEREAS, the State supports this organization’s life-saving mission; and 
 
WHEREAS, everyone is a potential organ, eye, and tissue donor,  
 
NOW THEREFORE,  I, Dale W. Copeland, Mayor, do hereby officially proclaim the month of 
April 2024 as “Donate Life Month” to honor all those who have made the decision to donate life, 
to focus attention on the extreme need for donation and to encourage all Oklahoma residents to 
register their wish to be organ, eye, and tissue donor. 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, we hereunto set our 
hands and caused the Official Seal of the City of 
Bartlesville, Oklahoma, to be affixed this 1st day of 
April, in the year of our Lord two thousand and 
twenty-four. 

 
                                                                                        

Agenda Item 5.i.

http://registerme.org/campaign/btph


 

 

                    Dale W. Copeland, Mayor 
 
 



   

   
   

Official Proclamation 
 

Autism Awareness & Acceptance Month 
April 2024 

 
WHEREAS, autism affects an estimated 1 in 36 children and 1 in 45 adults and affects 
each person differently, resulting in unique strengths and challenges; and 

WHEREAS, autism can cause challenges with verbal and nonverbal communication, 
social interaction, and repetitive behaviors, and can affect anyone, regardless of age, 
race, ethnicity, gender, or socioeconomic background; and  

WHEREAS, autism is often accompanied by medical conditions that impact quality of 
life; and  

WHEREAS, a comprehensive, collaborative approach will help to advance research, 
providing a better understanding of autism spectrum disorder while strengthening 
advocacy efforts and ensuring access to services and resources throughout the life 
span; and  

WHEREAS, early diagnosis and intervention tailored to individual needs can have 
lifelong benefits, easing the transition to adulthood and fostering greater independence; 
and,  

WHEREAS, each person and family affected by autism should have access to reliable 
information, supports and opportunities to live up to their greatest potential; and,  

WHEREAS, the City of Bartlesville is honored to take part in the annual observance of 
Autism Awareness & Acceptance Month to address the diverse needs of autistic 
individuals and their families.  

NOW, THEREFORE, I, Dale Copeland, Mayor, City of Bartlesville do hereby proclaim 
April 2024 as AUTISM AWARENESS & ACCEPTANCE MONTH and encourage all 
citizens to observe this month in order to increase understanding and acceptance of 
Oklahomans with autism spectrum disorder. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, we hereunto set our hands 
and caused the Official Seal of the City of Bartlesville, 
Oklahoma, to be affixed this 1st day of April, in the 
year of our Lord two thousand and twenty-four. 
 
 

                                                                                   
               Dale W. Copeland, Mayor 

 
 

 

Agenda Item 5.ii.



   

   
   

Official Proclamation 
  

““CCHHIILLDD  AABBUUSSEE  PPRREEVVEENNTTIIOONN  MMOONNTTHH””  
AAPPRRIILL  22002244  

 
Whereas, Bartlesville’s future prosperity depends on nurturing the healthy development of the more 
than 11,000 children currently living, growing, and learning within our community; and 
  
Whereas, research shows that safe, nurturing relationships and stimulating, stable environments 
improve brain development and child wellbeing, while neglectful or abusive experiences and unstable 
or stressful environments increase the odds of poor childhood outcomes; and 
  
Whereas, the abuse and neglect of children can cause severe, costly and lifelong problems affecting 
all of society, including physical and mental health problems, school failure and criminal behavior; and 
  
Whereas, research also shows that parents and caregivers who have social networks and know how 
to seek help in times of trouble are more resilient and better able to provide safe environments and 
nurturing experiences for their children; and 
  
Whereas, individuals, businesses, schools, and faith-based and community organizations must make 
children a top priority and take action to support the physical, social, emotional and educational 
development and competency of all children; and 
  
Whereas, during the month of April, the City of Bartlesville, Ray of Hope Advocacy Center, and 
CASA of Northeast Oklahoma in collaboration with their citywide partners will be engaging individuals 
and communities throughout the city in a coordinated effort to prevent child abuse and neglect by 
promoting awareness of healthy child development, positive parenting practices and the types of 
support families need within their communities; and 
  
Whereas, I encourage all citizens of Bartlesville, Oklahoma to recognize that prevention starts with 
each of us. 
  
Now, Therefore, I, Dale Copeland, Mayor, Bartlesville City Council, do hereby proclaim the month of 
April 2024 as Child Abuse Prevention Month. I urge all citizens of Bartlesville to learn about child 
abuse, how to recognize and report it, and commit themselves to the community goal of ensuring our 
most vulnerable population can live a safe and healthy life free from child abuse.  
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I hereunto set my hand and caused the Official Seal of the City of 
Bartlesville, Oklahoma, to be affixed this 1st day of April, in the year of our Lord two thousand and 
twenty-four. 
 
      
                                                                            
                                              Dale Copeland, Mayor 

  

Agenda Item 5.iii.



Official Proclamation 
Civitan Awareness Month 

April 2024

Whereas, Civitan International was founded in 1917 in Birmingham, 
Alabama; and 

Whereas, the over 40,000 members in over 1,300 clubs worldwide work 
together to make their communities better places; and 

Whereas, Civitan has contributed millions of dollars and volunteer hours to 
help people with developmental disabilities; and 

Whereas, Club projects provide citizens with meaningful involvement in their 
communities; and 

Whereas, Civitan promotes good citizenship and emphasizes its 
responsibilities; and 

Whereas, Civitan is recognized for its support of research and treatment of 
developmental disabilities through its funding of the Civitan International 
Research Center; and 

Whereas, the Bartlesville Civitan Club embodies the ideals of Civitan in our 
own community; 

NOW, THEREFORE, The City Council of the City of Bartlesville, does 
hereby proclaim the month of April 2024 as Civitan Awareness 
Month in Bartlesville, and in so doing, urge all citizens to actively 
support and take pride in the worthwhile efforts of this international service 
organization and in the work of Civitan’s in our community. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, we hereunto 
set our hands and caused the Official 
Seal of the City of 
Bartlesville, Oklahoma, to be affixed 
this 1st day of April, in the year of 
our Lord two thousand and 
twenty-four. 

 ________________________________ 
Dale Copeland, Mayor 

Agenda Item 5.iv.



Official Proclamation 
HEARTLAND DISTRICT OF PILOT INTERNATIONAL DAY

APRIL 20, 2024 

WHEREAS, Heartland District was formed as an organization in 2019 and is an affiliate of 
Pilot International, which established as a business and professional Women’s volunteer 
service organization that originated in Macon, Georgia in 1921; and 

WHEREAS, Pilot International has since expanded to include men and women from 
around the globe and all walks of life, consisting of over 5,300 adult and youth members 
in the United States, Bahamas, Japan and South America; and 

WHEREAS, Pilot International members work to influence positive change in 
communities throughout the world by coming together in friendship providing an outlet 
for service, encouraging brain safety and health and supporting those who care for 
others; and 

WHEREAS, Pilot International focuses on preparing youth and young adults for service 
through its sponsorship of Anchor and Compass Clubs by providing guidance and 
encouragement to their youth, giving them the opportunity to develop leadership skills 
and make a dynamic difference in their world through volunteer services; and 

WHEREAS, Pilot International developed its Pilot International Founders Fund to support 
the community-based work of Pilot Clubs by helping to underwrite Club efforts to serve 
in their local communities by improving the lives of others through education, 
volunteerism, financial support and research; and 

WHEREAS, Pilot International initiated its signature program BrainMinders in 2001 to 
encourage children to be safe in their homes and surroundings, developed BrainO for 
seniors, encouraging them to stay safe and healthy; and promotes saving lives by 
presenting head and brain injuries with the Helmet People Project; and 

NOW THEREFORE, I, Dale W. Copeland, Mayor of the City of Bartlesville, Oklahoma, do 
hereby proclaim April 20, 2024 as PILOT INTERNATIONAL DAY in the City of Bartlesville, 
and encourage all citizens to welcome the Heartland District to the City for their annual 
convention being help April 19 through April 21. 

In Witness Whereof, I have hereunto set my 
hand and caused the Seal of the City 
of Bartlesville to be affixed this 1st day of April 
in the year of our Lord, Two Thousand 
Twenty Four. 

_____________________________________  
  Dale W. Copeland, Mayor 

Agenda Item 5.v.



 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

MINUTES OF THE  
REGULAR MEETING OF THE 

BARTLESVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
 

Monday, March 4, 2024  
Immediately following the 

Bartlesville Education Authority 
Special Meeting and the Bartlesville 
Municipal Authority Special Meeting 

beginning at 5:30 p.m. 
 

Mayor Dale Copeland 
918-338-4282 

 

City Hall, Council Chambers 
401 S. Johnstone Avenue 
Bartlesville, OK 74003 

 
 
 
 
 

MINUTES 
(The Notice of Meeting was posted December 15, 2023 and the Agenda was posted February 29, 2024 at 5:30 p.m. 

 
City Council present were Mayor Dale Copeland, Councilmembers Trevor Dorsey,  Billie Roane 
and Loren Roszel. Vice Mayor Jim Curd, Jr. was absent. 

 
 City staff present were Laura Sanders, Acting City Manager; Jess Kane, City Attorney; Terry 

Lauritsen, Director of Water Utilities; Micah Siemers, Director of Engineering; Kelli Williams, 
Chief Communications Officer; Shellie McGill, Director of Public Library; Larry Curtis, Director of 
Community Development; Greg Collins, Special Projects; Police Chief Kevin Ickleberry; Deputy 
Chief Troy Newell; Captain Daniel Elkins, Security; and Elaine Banes, Executive Assistant.  

 
1. The business meeting of the Bartlesville City Council was called to order by Mayor 

Copeland at 5:56 p.m.  
 

2. Roll call was conducted and a quorum established. 
 

3. Citizens to be heard. 
 

There were no citizens to be heard. 
 

4. City Council Announcements and Proclamations. 
• Mayor Copeland read the Oklahoma Cleaning Week March 24-30, 2024 Proclamation. 

 
5. Authorities, Boards, Commissions and Committee Openings  

• One opening on the Bartlesville Area History Museum Trust Authority 
• One opening on the Sewer System Improvement Oversight Committee 
• One opening on Visit Bartlesville (Bartlesville Convention & Visitor’s Bureau Board of 

Directors) 
 

Mayor Copeland read the openings and encouraged citizens to volunteer on City 
Committees. Applications can be found at www.cityofbartlesville.org or at City Hall in the city 
Manager’s Office. 

 
 
 

Agenda Item 7.a.i.

http://www.cityofbartlesville.org/


 
 
 

6. Consent Docket 
a. Approval of Minutes 

i. The Regular Meeting Minutes of February 5, 2024. 
 

b. Approval or Ratification of Appointments to Authorities, Boards, Commissions, 
and Committees. 
i. Appointment of Ms. Kimberly Harrington, Ms. Linda Radaker, and Mr. Tyler Vaclaw 

to three year terms each on Keep Bartlesville Beautiful Committee at the 
recommendation of Councilmember Roane.  

ii. Appointment of Mr. Mark Manuel to a two-year term on the Bartlesville Adult Center 
Trust Authority at the recommendation of Mayor Copeland. 

iii. Reappointment of Ms. Etta Love and Ms. Nancy Swan to additional two-year terms 
on the Bartlesville Adult Center Trust Authority at the  recommendation of Mayor 
Copeland. 

iv. Reappointment of Ms. Molly Larson to an additional three-year term on the Sewer 
System Improvements Oversight Committee at the recommendation of 
Councilmember Dorsey. 

v. Reappointment of Mr. Andy Dossett to an additional three-year term on the City 
Planning Commission at the recommendation of Ms. Roane.  

  
 c. Approval of Agreements, Contracts, Engagement Letters, Change Orders, and 

Memorandums of Understanding. 
  i. Lease Agreement between B The Light and the City of Bartlesville for property 

located at 240 NW Penn Ave., Bartlesville, Oklahoma. 
ii. Contract between United Systems and the City of Bartlesville/Public Library for 

upgrades to the Library’s WIFI network. 
iii.  Agreement between the City of Bartlesville and the Lighthouse Outreach Center of 

Bartlesville, Inc. setting out the roles and responsibilities for implementing the 2021 
CDBG-Coronavirus Relief Program Grant modification for rehabilitation of facilities to 
improve indoor air quality.  

iv. Interlocal Agreement between the Board of County Commissioners of Washington 
County, Oklahoma and the City of Bartlesville to complete an open cut of Bison 
Road to advance the sewer installation at the intersection of Bison Road and 
Highway 60. 

v.  Short form contract with Bob Chaney Steel Construction to construct a 24’ x 30’ steel 
storage building at Fire Station No. 3. 

vi. Change Order No. 1 from MultiSports, LLC for the Pickleball Court Project. 
vii. Land Use Agreement between BIA and the City of Bartlesville/Bartlesville Municipal 

Airport to utilize the Bartlesville Airport for SEAT (Single Engine Air Tankers) Base 
Operations for deployment to wildland fire(s) as dispatched, with ramp/office space 
in the terminal and PAS Hangar 1 to be utilized. 

viii. User License with 4F Sports, Inc. DBA Washington County Youth Baseball and 
Softball for the programming and management of Baseball and Softball at Price 
Fields and Artunoff Complex’s. 

 
 d.  Approval of Lien Release 

i. Application and deed restriction agreement between the City of Bartlesville and 
Watie and Julie Pack, to forgive liens in the amount of $4,950.00 plus interest, fees 
and penalty on property located at 201 NW Bucy Avenue. 
 



 
 
 

 e. Approval of Resolutions 
  i. Amending the Budget of the City of Bartlesville for Fiscal Year 2023-24 appropriating 

Private Donations from Phillips 66 for the Police Department. 
     
 f. Receipt of Financials 
  i. Interim Financials for seven months ending January 31, 2024.  
 
 g.  Receipt of Bartlesville NEXT Report 
  i. Bartlesville NEXT Progress Report – March 2024 
 
 h. Receipt of Bids 
  i. Bid No. 2023-2024-013 Bartlesville Library Skylight Replacement Project 
 

Mayor Copeland read the consent docket in its entirety. Mr. Roszel pulled Items 6.c.vi. and 
6.d.i. for further discussion. Ms. Roane pulled Items 6.b.i and 6.b.v. for further discussion.  
 

 Ms. Roane moved to approve the consent docket except for Items 6.b.i., 6.b.v., 6.c.vi., and 
6.d.i., seconded by Mr. Roszel. 

 
Voting Aye: Mr. Dorsey, Mr. Roszel, Ms. Roane,  Mayor Copeland 
Voting Nay: None 
Motion:  Passed 

 
 Item 6.b.i. Appointment of Ms. Kimberly Harrington, Ms. Linda Radaker, and Mr. Tyler 

Vaclaw to three year terms each on Keep Bartlesville Beautiful Committee at 
the recommendation of Councilmember Roane.  

 
 Item 6.b.v. Reappointment of Mr. Andy Dossett to an additional three-year term on the City 

Planning Commission at the recommendation of Ms. Roane.  
 
 Ms. Roane commented on her appreciation and gratefulness for the service of KBB 

appointments and of Mr. Dossett’s continued service on the City Planning Commission. 
   
 Ms. Roane moved to approve  Item 6.b.i. and 6.b.v., seconded by Mr. Dorsey. 
 

Voting Aye: Mr. Roszel, Ms. Roane, Mr. Dorsey, Mayor Copeland 
Voting Nay: None 
Motion:  Passed 
 
Item 6.c.vi.  Change Order No. 1 from MultiSports, LLC for the Pickleball Court Project. 

 
 Mr. Siemers responded to Mr. Roszel’s questions covering the bid and contingency plan; 

private donations and matches; how funding is available through unallocated sales tax if 
private funding falls short; timing of the award; and lighting components.  

  
 Mr. Roszel moved to approve Item 6.c.vi., seconded by Ms. Roane. 
 

Voting Aye: Ms. Roane, Mr. Dorsey, Mr. Roszel, Mayor Copeland 
Voting Nay: None 
Motion:  Passed 



 
 
 

Item 6.d.i. Application and deed restriction agreement between the City of Bartlesville and 
Watie and Julie Pack, to forgive liens in the amount of $4,950.00 plus interest, 
fees and penalty on property located at 201 NW Bucy Avenue. 

 
 At Mr. Roszel’s request, Mr. Curtis provided the pertinent information regarding the request 

for the lien release. Additional discussion covered how the request meets all the criteria of 
the lien release policy; how there is no liability to the City; how the Packs have already 
cleaned up and improved the lot; that there is also an Oklahoma Health lien placed on the 
property also; how the OK Health lien will not allow approvements to the land for a term of 
seven years; how the City has a lien release policy in place; how the liens are a matter of 
public record; and that staff will review the policy for possible improvement. 

 
 Mr. Roszel moved to approve Item 6.d.i., seconded by Mr. Dorsey. 
 

Voting Aye: Mr. Dorsey, Mr. Roszel, Ms. Roane, Mayor Copeland 
Voting Nay: None 
Motion:  Passed 

 
7. Discuss and take possible action to award Bid No. 2023-2024-013 for the Bartlesville 

Library Skylight Replacement Project. Presented by Councilmember Roszel.  
 
 Mr. Roszel moved to award Bid No. 2023-2024-013 for the Bartlesville Library Skylight 

Replacement Project to Burgess Company, Oklahoma City, Oklahoma in the amount of 
$112,060.00, seconded by Ms. Roane. 

 
 Voting Aye: Mr. Roszel, Ms. Roane, Mr. Dorsey, Mayor Copeland 
 Voting Nay: None 
 Motion:  Passed 

 
8. A public hearing to consider a request by Edward Johnston to close a portion of a 10 

foot wide utility easement located on the south side of Lot 15, Block 9, Cambridge 
Park First Addition, Bartlesville, Washington County, Oklahoma. Presented by Micah 
Siemers, Director of Engineering.  
 
Mr. Siemers reported that the applicant requested the closure so that they can construct a 
storage building in the back and side yards of the property. Staff received no objections from 
Police, Fire, City utilities, Engineering, ONG, PSO, AT&T or Sparklight. Utilities are present in 
the 10’ easement on the east side of the property, thus the note in the legal description 
maintaining an easement where the two easements converge.  
 
Mayor Copeland opened the public hearing at 6:45 p.m. There being no one appear to 
speak; the Mayor closed the public hearing at 6:45 p.m. 
 
Ms. Roane moved to adopt the Ordinance closing the utility easement excluding the west 10 
feet of that easement as presented, seconded by Mr. Dorsey. 
 
Voting Aye:  Ms. Roane, Mr. Dorsey, Mr. Roszel, Mayor Copeland 
Voting Nay:  None 
Motion:  Passed 
 



 
 
 

9. A public hearing, consideration and possible action on a request to rezone 4.27 acres 
from RS-12 (Single Family Residential) to RM-3 (Multifamily Residential)/PUD (Planned 
Unit Development), and for approval of a PUD Site Development Plan, on property 
located North of the Northeast corner of Silver Lake Rd. and Price Rd., from Keleher 
Architects, on behalf of Oklahoma Wesleyan University. Presented by Larry R. Curtis, 
Director of Community Development. 

 
Mr. Curtis reported that the proposal involves Oklahoma Wesleyan University seeking to 
rezone and develop a property with single-family homes to multi-family/PUD. The plan is to 
build two lots with four quadplexes each to better serve student housing needs. Landscape 
modifications are proposed, using trees instead of fences on some borders due to 
neighboring university property. At the City Planning Commission public hearing,  comments 
were mixed with some residents supporting the project for housing and university growth, 
while others expressed concerns about property values and future buffer ownership. The 
Planning Commission made a recommendation to approve by a  vote of 6-0. He confirmed 
that the housing will be student housing, and that OKWU owns quite a few properties in the 
surrounding area. 
 
Mayor Copeland opened the public hearing at 6:50 p.m. Appearing to speak were: 
 
James Dunn, President of Oklahoma Wesleyan University, Bob Pomeroy, President of 
Burlingame Home Owners Association, and Sherri Wilt, President of the Bartlesville Area 
Chamber of Commerce. All were in favor of approving the rezoning and PUD. 
 
There being no one further appear to speak; the Mayor closed the public hearing at 7:01 p.m. 
 
Mr. Roszel inquired as to what concerns were raised about the rezoning. Mr. Curtis stated 
that the main concern was multi-family residences and traffic. 
 
Ms. Roszel moved to adopt the Ordinance as presented, seconded by Ms. Roane. 
 
Voting Aye:  Mr. Dorsey, Mr. Roszel, Ms. Roane, Mayor Copeland 
Voting Nay:  None 
Motion:  Passed 

 
10. Consideration and take possible action on a Resolution of the City Council of the City 

of Bartlesville, Oklahoma (the “City”) approving the incurrence of indebtedness by the 
Bartlesville Education Authority (the “Authority”) issuing its Educational Facilities Lease 
Revenue Bonds (Bartlesville Public Schools Project) Series 2024 (the “Bonds”); 
providing that the organizational document creating the authority is subject to the 
provisions of the Bond Indenture authorizing the issuance of said Bonds; waiving 
competitive bidding and authorizing the sale of said Bonds by the Authority at 
negotiated sale and at a price less than par; approving the forms of a Continuing 
Disclosure Agreement and an Official Statement relating to the Bonds; authorizing the 
execution of all necessary documents, and containing other provisions relating thereto. 

 
Mr. Ellis reported that this action is necessary to approve the incurrence of indebtedness by 
the Bartlesville Education Authority issuing its Educational Facilities Lease Revenue Bonds 
Series 2024, approved by the BEA in their special meeting prior to the City Council meeting. 

 



 
 
 

Mr. Dorsey moved to approve the Resolution as presented as presented, seconded by Ms. 
Roane. 
 
Voting Aye:  Mr. Roszel, Ms. Roane, Mr. Dorsey, Mayor Copeland 
Voting Nay:  None 
Motion:  Passed 
 

11. Consider and take possible action with respect to a Resolution of the City Council of 
the City of Bartlesville, Oklahoma (the “City”) approving action taken by the 
Bartlesville Municipal Authority (the “Authority”) authorizing issuance, sale and 
delivery of its Clean Water SRF promissory note to Oklahoma Water Resources Board; 
ratifying and confirming a lease agreement; and containing other provisions related 
thereto. 

Mayor Copeland stated that this action is necessary to approve action taken by the 
Bartlesville Municipal Authority in their meeting prior to the City Council meeting. He added 
that a great deal of thought, planning and preparation has gone into one of Bartlesville’s 
largest ever projects, a project that is State mandated he noted. 
 
Mr. Dorsey moved to approve the Resolution as presented as presented, seconded by Ms. 
Roane. 
 
Voting Aye:  Ms. Roane, Mr. Dorsey, Mr. Roszel, Mayor Copeland 
Voting Nay:  None 
Motion:  Passed 
 

12. Discuss and take possible action to accept the 2024 City of Bartlesville Housing 
Study. Presented by Larry R. Curtis, Director of Community Development. 

 
Mr. Curtis reported that Bartlesville conducted a housing study to understand housing history, 
current trends, and future needs. Using data sources such as US Census, HUD, Tulsa MLS, 
Federal Reserve, and local rental surveys, the study examined housing units, substandard 
housing, vacancy rates, building permits, and ownership/rental markets. The goal is to 
ensure safe, affordable housing for all residents and guide future housing decisions. The 
study results will be used to develop strategies for a balanced and inclusive housing 
approach and will be included in the City’s new Comprehensive Plan. He reviewed the 2023-
2027 housing needs for veterans; housing needs for persons with disabilities; housing needs 
for working families; and housing needs by income threshold. Overall Bartlesville’s analysis 
projects a need for 165 new owner-occupied and 78 new renter-occupied units within the 
next five years. 

 
A brief discussion covered how new housing is a little behind, especially in the $80,000 price 
range; and how the study will assist in finding funding mechanisms to improve the numbers. 
 
Mr. Roszel moved to accept the 2024 City of Bartlesville Housing Study as presented as 
presented, seconded by Ms. Roane. 
 
Voting Aye:  Mr. Dorsey, Mr. Roszel, Ms. Roane, Mayor Copeland 
Voting Nay:  None 
Motion:  Passed 



 
 
 

 
13. Discuss and take possible action to adopt an Ordinance amending Chapter 17, 

Streets, Sidewalks, and other Public Places, Article IV, Sidewalks, of the Bartlesville 
Municipal Code concerning the construction of sidewalks. Presented by Larry R. 
Curtis, Director of Community Development. 

 
Mr. Roszel moved to table action to the April 1, 2024 Regular Meeting, seconded by Ms. 
Roane. 
 
Voting Aye:  Mr. Roszel, Ms. Roane, Mr. Dorsey, Mayor Copeland 
Voting Nay:  None 
Motion:  Passed 
 

14. New Business. 
 

There was no new business to address. 
 

15. City Manager and Staff Reports.   
 
Ms. Sanders reported that the YMCA resigned as the manager of Price and Artunoff Fields 
stating that it was no longer in their strategic plan moving forward.  
 
She also announced that Fire Chief David Topping is retiring as of June 1, 2024. She 
appreciated his service and wished him well in his future endeavors. The process to fill his 
position will begin immediately. 
 
The semi-annual yard debris free pick up will be the week of May 6. Bags of yard debris may 
be set out on the curb on the same day as normal trash service and will be picked up by a 
separate truck. Limbs can be bundled in 50 lbs or less and in four foot lengths. 
 

16. City Council Comments and Inquiries. 
 
Mayor Copeland expressed his appreciation to Chief Topping for his leadership of the Fire 
Department. He added that Ms. Sanders is the H. R. Director and does a  great job. Ms. 
Sanders reported that there are many employment opportunities available at this time and 
welcomed anyone who is interested to apply. 
 

17. There being no further business to address, Mayor Copeland adjourned the meeting at 
7:31 p.m. 

 
                                                                 
Dale W. Copeland, Mayor 

 
                                                           
 Jason Muninger, CFO/City Clerk 



 7.b.i.





7.b.i.





 7.b.i.





Page 1 of 2 
 

 

 

Agenda Item ___  
March 27, 2024 

Prepared by Micah Siemers 
Engineering  

 
 

I. SUBJECT, ATTACHMENTS, AND BACKGROUND 

Consider a request by David Hess to give 5th Street between Delaware Avenue and 
Shawnee Avenue the honorary name of “Jim Hess Boulevard” in honor of his father, 
and authorizing the Mayor to execute the ordinance resolving the honorary naming. 

Attachments: 
 Application Packet 
 Resolution 

II. STAFF COMMENTS AND ANALYSIS 

City of Bartlesville Engineering staff received an application from David Hess 
requesting honorary naming of 5th Street between Delaware Avenue and Shawnee 
Avenue “Jim Hess Boulevard” in honor of his father.  The applicant provided a 
multitude of supporting evidence of the impact Jim Hess made in the Bartlesville 
area.  While the application packet is provided with this staff report, some quick 
highlights are following: 

 Two-term president of The Friends of the Bartlesville Library 

 Three-term president of the Washington County Historical Society 

o Instrumental in establishing the one-room school house exhibit at the 
Bartlesville Area History Museum 

o Acquiring authentic furniture and supplies to furnish the exhibit 

 Served as president of the Bartlesville Area History Museum and the BAHM 
Trust Authority 

 Created the College High School Alumni Association and Scholarship Fund 

o Created in 1986 

o Has helped over 141 graduates attend college 

o Maintains $500,000 conservative investment portfolio so that 
receiving students continue to receive Wildcat financial assistance 
each year they make their grades in college 

The request to give an honorary name to 5th Street between Delaware Avenue and 
Shawnee Avenue is due to the fact that the Hess family had started, owned, and 
operated the 5th Street Liquor Store located at the northwest corner of 5th Street and 
Shawnee for 57 years prior to Jim’s passing. 

7.c.i.



Page 2 of 2 
 

When staff first received the request for honorary street naming, we had an existing 
policy in place that only required Engineering Department and City Manager review 
for recommendation to City Council.  In that same time other departments had 
received inquiries about naming other City facilities or properties such as parks and 
recreational fields.  A new administrative policy was created to address not just 
streets, but all City-owned facilities.  This new policy included that these requests 
should go to appropriate committees for review and recommendation.  This request 
has been presented to the Street & Traffic Committee and they recommended that it 
be presented to Council for approval at their March 14th regular meeting.  It should be 
noted that this is an honorary naming and not a request to rename the street.  Mailing 
addresses will remain as they currently are.  Signage will remain the same with the 
addition of a blue sign above 5th Street that says “Jim Hess Blvd”.  A similar honorary 
renaming occurred on Shawnee between 18th and Hillcrest in honor of Jim Bohnsack. 

III. BUDGET IMPACT 

None 

IV. RECOMMENDED ACTION 

Staff recommends approval of the request and authorizing the Mayor to execute the 
included resolution. 

 







































































RESOLUTION NO. 3696 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF BARTLESVILLE GIVING 5TH STREET FROM DELAWARE 
AVENUE TO SHAWNEE AVENUE THE HONORARY NAME OF “JIM HESS BOULEVARD”.   

WHEREAS, The Hess family owned and operated the 5th & Shawnee Liquor Store for 57 years prior to the 
passing of Jim Hess; and 

WHEREAS, James Albert “Jim” Hess took over ownership of the store in 1977; and 

WHEREAS, Jim Hess is a 1961 College High School Graduate and started the College High School Alumni 
Association and Scholarship Fund that has helped over 141 Bartlesville graduates attend college since its 
inception in 1986; and 

WHEREAS, The College High Alumni Scholarship Fund provides financial assistance to Wildcat recipients 
each year that they make their grades in college; and 

WHEREAS, Because of this legacy, Jim Hess has promoted education and growth for the young people of 
our community that has changed lives in a positive way; and 

WHEREAS, Jim Hess has served as two-term president of The Friends of Bartlesville Library, has served as 
three-term president of the Washington County Historical Society, where he was instrumental in in 
establishing the one-room school house at the Bartlesville Area History Museum, and has served as president 
of the Bartlesville Area History Museum and the BAHM Trust Authority; and 

WHEREAS, Jim Hess has left a lasting impact on the Bartlesville community through education and helping 
preserve our history; and 

WHEREAS, The Street & Traffic Committee has reviewed the application for honorary naming of 5th Street 
between Delaware Avenue and Shawnee Avenue, and has recommended approval of the application; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA: 

That 5th Street from Delaware Avenue to Shawnee Avenue is hereby given the honorary name of “Jim 
Hess Boulevard”.  Provided, however, that the current and future mailing addresses shall remain unchanged. 

PASSED BY THE CITY COUNCIL AND APPROVED BY THE MAYOR OF THE CITY OF 
BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA, THIS 1ST DAY OF APRIL, 2024. 

_________________________________________ 
Mayor Dale Copeland 

ATTEST: 

_________________________________ 
Jason Muninger, CFO/City Clerk 

Approved as to form and legality this 1st day of April, 2024 

________________________________________
Jess Kane, City Attorney 



1 
 

Agenda Item ___ 
March 28, 2024 

Prepared by Greg Collins, Special Projects Manager 
Community Development Department 

 
 

 
I. SUBJECT, ATTACHMENTS, AND BACKGROUND 

 
Consider and take possible action to approve a Resolution which accepts as complete the Fiscal Year 2021 
Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Small Cities Set-Aside Program project, Contract No. 
18261, for Fifth Street sidewalk and street improvements. 
 
Attachments:  (1) Aerials and Street Level Photos of Project 
 (2) Minutes/Summary of Final Public Hearing, March 5, 2024 
 (3) Resolution Approving and Accepting the 2021 Community 

Development Block Grant (CDBG) Project as Complete 
 

II. STAFF COMMENTS AND ANALYSIS 
 
In 2021, the Oklahoma Department of Commerce awarded $228,333.00 in grant funding from the Fiscal 
Year 2021 CDBG Program to the City of Bartlesville. This was matched and leveraged with City funds 
totaling in the amount of $286,047.00, for use in a project to serve low to moderate income areas of the 
city. The project site was Fifth Street right-of-way, from Santa Fe Avenue to Sunset Boulevard.  The 
project involved installation of: 
 

• Sidewalks, ramps, and tactile warning devices; 
• Curb & gutter repairs; 
• Concrete street rehabilitation on portions of 5th Street from Virginia Ave to Santa Fe Ave. 

 
The work has been inspected and accepted as part of the City’s public infrastructure.  Aerial images and 
street level photos of the completed project are attached. 
 
Project Financial Summary: 

Project Funds  KSL Dirt Works, LLC Bid & Agreement: 
$489,900.00 

CDBG Funds: $228,333.00  
City Initial Matching Funds: $228,333.00 
Total Initial Estimated Budget: $456,666.00 
City ARPA Street Funds $  33,234.00 
Total Modified Budget $489,900.00 $489,900.00 KSL Bid & Agreement 
Additional City ARPA Street 
Funds 

$  24,480.00 $  24,480.00 Change Order for 
increase in final 
quantities for curb & 
gutter 

Total Actual Project Cost: $514,380.00 $514,380.00 
 
Participation in the CDBG Small Cities Set Aside Program requires the holding of a final public hearing 
after the completion of a grant-funded project to assess and discuss the City’s performance.  The public 
hearing was held by City staff on March 5, 2024 and the minutes/summary of the hearing is attached.  
Another requirement, the subject of this agenda item, is the approval of a resolution by City Council, 
accepting the project as complete. 

7.c.ii.



2 
 

 
III. RECOMMENDED ACTION 

 
The City Council is requested to approve the attached Resolution which accepts as complete the Fiscal 
Year 2021 CDBG Small Cities Set-Aside Program project, Contract No. 18261. 



Total Project Area: Sunset Blvd to Santa Fe Ave
Approx. 0.75 mi



Sunset Blvd to Adeline Ave
Approx. 640 ft / 0.12 mi

M
argarite AvePublic Works



Adeline Ave to Bucy Ave
Approx. 640 ft / 0.12 mi 

Cass Ave

Custom Molding
Services

E.K. Thomas
Activity Center

Westside Community Center
Douglass Park



Bucy Ave to Rogers Ave
Approx. 640 ft / 0.12 mi  



Rogers Ave to Virginia Ave
Approx. 640 ft / 0.12 mi  

Concern Center

AbilityWorks

Concern Child 
Learning Center



Virginia Ave to Seminole Ave
Approx. 665 ft / 0.13 mi  

Veterans Park

Ballfields

Boys & Girls Club



Seminole Ave to Santa Fe Ave
Approx. 660 ft / 0.13 mi  



1 
 

Sunset Blvd to Adeline Ave, starting at Margarite Ave 
(All views looking east) 

 
 

Adeline Ave (approaching Custom Molding Services) 

 



2 
 

Adeline Ave (at Custom Molding Services) 

 
 

Approaching Agape Mission Parking Lot,  
E.K. Thomas Activity Center & Douglass Park 

 



3 
 

Cass Ave (E.K. Thomas Activity Center & Douglass Park) 

 
 

 



4 
 

Approaching Westside Community Center) 

 
 

Westside Community Center 

 



5 
 

Westside Community Center (approaching Bucy Ave) 

 
 

Bucy Ave, Crossing 5th Ave 

 



6 
 

Bucy Ave 

 
 

 



7 
 

Towards Morton Ave 

 
 

Morton Ave 

 



8 
 

Crossing Morton Ave 

 
 

Towards Rogers Ave 

 
 



9 
 

Towards Rogers Ave 

 
 

Rogers Ave (Concern Child Care Learning Center) 

 



10 
 

Rogers Ave (Concern Child Care Learning Center) 

 
 

 



11 
 

Towards Penn Ave (Concern Center) 

 
 

Concern Center 

 



12 
 

Concern Center (towards Penn Ave) 

 
 

Penn Ave (towards AbilityWorks) 

 
 



13 

AbilityWorks, towards Virginia Ave & Veterans Park 



14 

5th St. Improvement east of Virginia Ave, at 
Veterans Park, Boys & Girls Club, & Ballfields



15 

5th Street Improvement 



16 

5th Street Improvement 



17 

5th Street Improvement 



18 

5th Street, at Seminole Ave 

Seminole Ave 



19 

Towards Cheyenne Ave 



20 

Towards Cheyenne Ave 



21 

Cheyenne Ave (Looking North) 

Cheyenne Ave (Looking East) 



22 

Crossing Cheyenne Ave 

Towards Santa Fe Ave 



23 

Towards Santa Fe Ave 

5th St & Santa Fe Ave, Looking South/Southeast 



24 

5th St & Santa Fe Ave, Looking North 



25 

5th St & Santa Fe Ave, Looking Southeast 





 
 

CITY OF BARTLESVILLE 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT 
2021 SMALL CITIES SET-ASIDE PROGRAM 

PUBLIC HEARING 
TUESDAY, MARCH 5, 2024 

5:30 p.m. 
 

Name:  Gregory S. Collins      Location:   Council Chambers  
Title:  Special Projects Manager       City Hall 
Address: City Hall           City of Bartlesville    
   401 S. Johnstone Ave.        401 S. Johnstone Ave. 
   Bartlesville, OK 74003        Bartlesville, OK 74003   
   Telephone: 918-338-4241 

 
 

AGENDA 
ITEM NO. 1 – Call to Order 

ITEM NO. 2 – Public Hearing 
Public hearing to assess and discuss the City’s performance in the administration of the grant 
received from the State of Oklahoma for Fiscal Year 2021 CDBG Small Cities Set-Aside program 
– Contract #18261. This grant provided funding in the amount of $228,333 for street and 
sidewalk improvements on West 5th Street between Santa Fe Avenue and Sunset Boulevard. 
The City Staff will consider both written and verbal comments pertaining to the City’s 
performance in the administration of this grant. All persons or groups interested in this matter 
are invited to attend the public hearing or submit written comments to the Community 
Development Director, City of Bartlesville, City Hall, 401 S. Johnstone Ave, Bartlesville, Oklahoma 
74003 no later than 5:00 p.m. on Tuesday, March 5, 2024. 

 
ITEM NO. 3 – Adjournment 

 
Filed in the office of the City Clerk at City Hall, Bartlesville, Oklahoma on February 14, 2024, at 9:30 a.m. and 
posted same day at 5:30 p.m. 
 

Jason Muninger        /s/ Elaine Banes 
Jason Muninger, CFO/City Clerk             by Deputy City Clerk 

 

 
Open Meetings Act Compliance (25 O.S. Sec. 301 et seq.): All discussion items are subject to possible action by the City Planning Commission. 
Official action can only be taken on items which appear on the agenda. The City Planning Commission may adopt, approve, ratify, deny, defer, 
recommend, amend, strike, or continue any agenda item. When more information is needed to act on an item, the City Planning Commission 
may refer the matter to the City Manager, Staff or City Attorney, or back to a committee or other recommending body. Under certain 
circumstances, items are deferred to a specific later date or stricken from the agenda entirely. Agenda items requiring a public hearing as 
required by law will be so noted. The City Planning Commission may at their discretion change the order of the business agenda items. City of 
Bartlesville encourages participation from all its citizens.  If participation at any public meeting is not possible due to a disability, notification to 
the City Clerk at least one working day prior to the scheduled meeting is encouraged to make the necessary accommodations.  The City may 
waive this rule if signing is not the necessary accommodation. 
 

 









RESOLUTION NO. _________ 
 
A CLOSEOUT RESOLUTION APPROVING AND ACCEPTING THE FY 2021 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT (CDBG) PROJECT AS COMPLETE. 
 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Bartlesville received and accepted CDBG grant No. 18261 CDBG 21 to 
fund improvements as described: 
 

5th Street Sidewalk and Street Improvements between Santa Fe Ave and Sunset Blvd. 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Bartlesville contracted with KSL Dirt Works, LLC to construct the 
project listed above; and 
 
WHEREAS, a final inspection has been done and the Bartlesville city engineer has 
recommended acceptance of the project including approval of final payment; and 
 
WHEREAS, all final costs have been incurred to make final payment to the contractor. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA: 
 

That the City of Bartlesville accepts the 18261 CDBG 21 5th Street Sidewalk and Street 
Improvements between Sunset Blvd and Santa Fe Ave as being complete. 

 
ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL AND APPROVED BY THE MAYOR OF THE 
CITY OF BARTLESVILLE THIS 1st DAY OF APRIL, 2024. 
 
 

____________________________________ 
       Mayor Dale Copeland 
 
 
Subscribed and sworn to before me this _________ day of _____________, 2024. 
 
My commission expires on _____________________, 
 
Commission No. _____________ 
 
 
_________________________________________ 
Elaine Banes, Assistant City Clerk 



Agenda Item ___ 
March 27, 2024 

Prepared by Micah Siemers 
Engineering 

 
 
 
I. SUBJECT, ATTACHMENTS, AND BACKGROUND 

 
Consideration and possible action to approve a resolution to accept FAA grant AIG 3-40-0007-
018-2024, for “Construct Taxilane” in the amount of $585,146.00, and authorize the Mayor to 
execute the grant documents upon receipt from FAA. 
 
Attachments: 
Grant Resolution 
 

II. STAFF COMMENTS AND ANALYSIS 
 
The next phase in airport improvements involves construction of new taxilanes to facilitate future 
hangar development.  The project will include an east/west taxiway extending east of the existing 
main taxiway and will be located to the northeast of the terminal building.  This taxilane has been 
designed far enough north of the terminal building for potential future expansion of the 
terminal/FBO apron and multiple future hangar sites.  This taxilane could be extended further 
east in the future as the airport develops.  Also included within the scope is a north/south taxilane 
running south from the new east/west taxiway.  This taxilane will open up development of more 
of the airport property for mid-sized hangars.  The total project cost, including engineering, grant 
administration, and construction contract, is $2,026,125.00.  The ODAA grant will be in the 
amount of $1,187,818.75 and will fund 58.63% of the project.  The City will have a 5% share in 
the total project of $101,306.25.  The FAA will fund the remaining $737,000.00 which will 
include $585,146.00 in AIG grant funds and $154,854.00 in NPE grant funds that will expire if 
not used in FY 24.  The plans and specifications are complete and bids were opened on February 
29, 2024.  The City’s airport consultant, Parkhill, will prepare a grant application to the FAA for 
both the AIG and NPE grants.  Part of the requirement to apply for the FAA funds is to approve 
a resolution accepting the grant offer from the FAA and authorizing the Mayor to execute the 
grant agreement upon receipt from FAA. 
 

III. BUDGET IMPACT 
 
The grant agreement will require that the City pay for 10% of the portion of the project associated 
with each FAA grant, whether NPE funds or AIG funds.  The City will also be responsible for 
our share of the ODAA grant that is being handled in tandem with the FAA grants.  Sufficient 
budget is available in the Airport Fund to cover the City’s share of each grant component. 
 

IV. RECOMMENDED ACTION 
 
Staff recommends executing the resolution accepting the FAA AIG grant offer and authorizing 
the Mayor to execute the grant agreement, upon receipt from FAA. 

7.c.iii.



RESOLUTION NO. ________ 

A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING A GRANT OFFER FROM THE FEDERAL AVIATION 
ADMINISTRATION FOR AIRPORT IMROVEMENT PROJECT (AIG 3-40-0007-018-2024) 
AT BARTLESVILLE MUNICIPAL AIRPORT FOR “CONSTRUCT TAXILANE” AND 
AUTHORIZE THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE THE GRANT AGREEMENT AND ALL 
NECESSARY DOCUMENTS, UPON RECEIPT FROM FAA.   
______________________________________________________________________________ 

WHEREAS, the City of Bartlesville has submitted a Project Application at the Bartlesville 
Municipal Airport for a project to construct a taxilane, as approved by the Federal Aviation 
Administration (FAA); and 

WHEREAS, the FAA has approved a project with funding made possible by the Airport 
Infrastructure Grant (AIG) and requires formal acceptance thereof by resolution; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA: 

1. The Grant Offer for Airport Infrastructure Grant (AIG 3-40-0007-018-2024) for Construct
Taxilane and the Grant Agreement therefore all are hereby expressly approved and accepted by the 
City of Bartlesville, upon receipt from FAA. 

2. That the Mayor is hereby authorized and directed to execute the Grant Agreement for the
Project and all paperwork associated therewith on behalf of the City Council of the City of 
Bartlesville, upon receipt from FAA. 

PASSED BY THE CITY COUNCIL AND APPROVED BY THE MAYOR OF THE CITY OF 
BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA, THIS 1ST DAY OF APRIL, 2024. 

_________________________________________ 
Mayor Dale Copeland 

ATTEST: 

__________________________________ 
Jason Muninger, CFO//City Clerk 

Approved as to form and legality this 1st day of April, 2024 

_________________________________________ 

 Jess Kane,  City Attorney 



Agenda Item ___ 
March 27, 2024 

Prepared by Micah Siemers 
Engineering 

I. SUBJECT, ATTACHMENTS, AND BACKGROUND

Consideration and possible action to approve a resolution to accept FAA grant AIP 3-40-0007-
019-2024, for “Construct Taxilane” in the amount of $154,854.00, and authorize the Mayor to
execute the grant documents upon receipt from FAA.

Attachments: 
Grant Resolution 

II. STAFF COMMENTS AND ANALYSIS

The next phase in airport improvements involves construction of new taxilanes to facilitate future
hangar development.  The project will include an east/west taxiway extending east of the existing
main taxiway and will be located to the northeast of the terminal building.  This taxilane has been
designed far enough north of the terminal building for potential future expansion of the
terminal/FBO apron and multiple future hangar sites.  This taxilane could be extended further
east in the future as the airport develops.  Also included within the scope is a north/south taxilane
running south from the new east/west taxiway.  This taxilane will open up development of more
of the airport property for mid-sized hangars.  The total project cost, including engineering, grant
administration, and construction contract, is $2,026,125.00.  The ODAA grant will be in the
amount of $1,187,818.75 and will fund 58.63% of the project.  The City will have a 5% share in
the total project of $101,306.25.  The FAA will fund the remaining $737,000.00 which will
include $585,146.00 in AIG grant funds and $151,854.00 in NPE grant funds that will expire if
not used in FY 24.  The plans and specifications are complete and bids were opened on February
29, 2024.  The City’s airport consultant, Parkhill, will prepare a grant application to the FAA for
both the AIG and NPE grants.  Part of the requirement to apply for the FAA funds is to approve
a resolution accepting the grant offer from the FAA and authorizing the Mayor to execute the
grant agreement upon receipt from FAA.

III. BUDGET IMPACT

The grant agreement will require that the City pay for 10% of the portion of the project associated
with each FAA grant, whether NPE funds or AIG funds.  The City will also be responsible for
our share of the ODAA grant that is being handled in tandem with the FAA grants.  Sufficient
budget is available in the Airport Fund to cover the City’s share of each grant component.

IV. RECOMMENDED ACTION

Staff recommends executing the resolution accepting the FAA NPE grant offer and authorizing
the Mayor to execute the grant agreement, upon receipt from FAA.

7.c.iv.



RESOLUTION NO. ________ 

A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING A GRANT OFFER FROM THE FEDERAL AVIATION 
ADMINISTRATION FOR AIRPORT IMROVEMENT PROJECT (AIP 3-40-0007-019-2024) 
AT BARTLESVILLE MUNICIPAL AIRPORT FOR “CONSTRUCT TAXILANE” AND 
AUTHORIZE THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE THE GRANT AGREEMENT AND ALL 
NECESSARY DOCUMENTS, UPON RECEIPT FROM FAA.   
______________________________________________________________________________ 

WHEREAS, the City of Bartlesville has submitted a Project Application at the Bartlesville 
Municipal Airport for a project to construct a taxilane, as approved by the Federal Aviation 
Administration (FAA); and 

WHEREAS, the FAA has approved a project with funding made possible by the Airport 
Improvement Program (AIP) and requires formal acceptance thereof by resolution; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA: 

1. The Grant Offer for Airport Improvement Program (AIP 3-40-0007-019-2024) for
Construct Taxilane and the Grant Agreement therefore all are hereby expressly approved and 
accepted by the City of Bartlesville, upon receipt from FAA. 

2. That the Mayor is hereby authorized and directed to execute the Grant Agreement for the
Project and all paperwork associated therewith on behalf of the City Council of the City of 
Bartlesville, upon receipt from FAA. 

PASSED BY THE CITY COUNCIL AND APPROVED BY THE MAYOR OF THE CITY OF 
BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA, THIS 1ST DAY OF APRIL, 2024. 

_________________________________________ 
Mayor Dale Copeland 

ATTEST: 

__________________________________ 
Jason Muninger, CFO/City Clerk 

Approved as to form and legality this 1st day of April, 2024 

_________________________________________ 
   Jess Kane, City Attorney 



Agenda Item ___ 
March 28, 2024 

Prepared by Alicia Shelton  
Accounting and Finance 

 
 
 

I. SUBJECT, ATTACHMENTS, AND BACKGROUND 
 
A resolution amending the budget of the City of Bartlesville for fiscal year 2023-24 
appropriating unbudgeted revenue from the General Fund. 
 
Attachments: 

 
A resolution amending the Budget for the City of Bartlesville for fiscal year 2023-
2024. Appropriating unbudgeted revenue from the general fund. 
  

 
II. STAFF COMMENTS AND ANALYSIS 

 
The City needs to appropriate funds to cover unexpected specialty drug costs. $648,149 
will come from unbudgeted Revenues from the General Fund and $260,563 will come 
from the Enterprise Fund. There is no appropriation for the Enterprise Fund, it has 
budgetary room do to attrition that will absorb this additional expense.  

 
  

III. BUDGET IMPACT 
 
Budgetary impact is $648,149 in addition cost associated with General fund Employees. 
 
 

IV. RECOMMENDED ACTION 
 

Staff Recommends approval of resolution to appropriate funds. 
 
 

7.c.v.



RESOLUTION ___________ 
 

A RESOLUTION AMENDING THE BUDGET OF THE CITY OF 
BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA FOR FISCAL YEAR 2023–2024, 
APPROPRIATING UNBUDGETED REVENUE FOR THE GENERAL FUND. 
 
 
WHEREAS, THE City of Bartlesville has unbudgeted revenues in the excess of $648,149; 
and  
 
WHEREAS, the City of Bartlesville needs to appropriate $648,149 of these revenues prior 
to their expenditure; 
 
NOW, THERFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA that: 
 
 The General Services Dept (170) of the General Fund (101) shall be 

increased as follows: 
 

 Group Insurance (51140) $ 648,149 
 

 
APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL AND SIGNED BY THE MAYOR OF THE 
CITY OF BARTLESVILLE THIS 1st DAY OF APRIL, 2024. 
 
 
 
   
  Mayor 
Attest: 
 
 
 
  
 City Clerk 



Agenda Item ___ 
March 28, 2024 

Prepared by Alicia Shelton 
Accounting and Finance 

I. SUBJECT, ATTACHMENTS, AND BACKGROUND

A resolution amending the budget of the City of Bartlesville for fiscal year 2023-24 
appropriating unbudgeted revenue for the Health Insurance Fund.

Attachments:

A resolution amending the Budget for the City of Bartlesville for fiscal year 2023-
2024. Appropriating unanticipated revenue for the Health Insurance Fund. 

II. STAFF COMMENTS AND ANALYSIS

The City needs to appropriate funds to cover unexpected specialty drug costs. $648,149
will come from unbudgeted Revenues from the General Fund and $260,563 will come
from the Enterprise Fund. There is no appropriation for the Enterprise Fund, it has
budgetary room do to attrition that will absorb this additional expense.

III. BUDGET IMPACT

Budgetary impact nets zero because this is an internal service fund. $908,712 increase in
revenue and $908,712 increase in expenditure, however this is will come at an unexpected
rise in costs.

IV. RECOMMENDED ACTION

Staff Recommends approval of resolution to appropriate funds.

 7.c.vi.



RESOLUTION ___________ 
 

A RESOLUTION AMENDING THE BUDGET OF THE CITY OF 
BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA FOR FISCAL YEAR 2023–2024, 
APPROPRIATING UNBUDGETED REVENUE FOR THE HEALTH INSURANCE 
FUND. 
 
 
WHEREAS, THE City of Bartlesville has unbudgeted revenues in the excess of $908,712; 
and  
 
WHEREAS, the City of Bartlesville needs to appropriate $908,712 of these revenues prior 
to their expenditure; 
 
NOW, THERFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA that: 
 
 The General Services Dept (170) of the Health Insurance Fund (661) shall be 

increased as follows: 
 

 Group Insurance (51140) $ 908,712 
 

 
APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL AND SIGNED BY THE MAYOR OF THE 
CITY OF BARTLESVILLE THIS 1st DAY OF APRIL, 2024. 
 
 
 
   
  Mayor 
Attest: 
 
 
 
  
 City Clerk 



Agenda Item 7.d.i.





Page 1 of 1 
 

 

 

Agenda Item ___  
March 28, 2024 

Prepared by Micah Siemers 
Engineering  

 
 

I. SUBJECT, ATTACHMENTS, AND BACKGROUND 

Approval of an Interlocal Agreement between the Board of County 
Commissioners of Washington County, Oklahoma and the City of Bartlesville to 
provide the ability to work on joint projects together. 

Attachments: 
 Interlocal Agreement 

II. STAFF COMMENTS AND ANALYSIS 

Recently, there has been some guardrail damaged on a city street.  The City of 
Bartlesville needs guardrail material and Washington County has material that can be 
used now, without waiting to order the material and expedite installation of the safety 
device.  This has brought up the desire of both the Board of Washington County 
Commissioners and City of Bartlesville administration to enter into a yearly interlocal 
agreement authorizing each entity to transfer, as needed, any materials, equipment, 
labor and fuel that can be reimbursed.  This also authorizes cooperation on joint 
projects between the two entities.  This agreement is for FY 23-24 and FY 24-25 so 
that the current scenario can be addressed in the current fiscal year. 

III. BUDGET IMPACT 

There is no anticipated budget impact, but City resources may be used at times to 
assist with County projects or needs, but the intent is that those resources would be 
reimbursed. 

 
IV. RECOMMENDED ACTION 

Staff recommends approval of the interlocal agreement. 

 

7.d.ii.









7.d.iii.















7.d.iv.









Agenda Item ___ 
March 27, 2024 

Prepared by Micah Siemers 
Engineering 

 
 
 
I. SUBJECT, ATTACHMENTS, AND BACKGROUND 

 
Consideration and possible action to submit a grant application to the Oklahoma Department of 
Aerospace and Aeronautics (ODAA) for a grant to fund the project to Construct Taxilanes at 
Bartlesville Municipal Airport. 
 
Attachments: 
ODAA Grant Application 
Draft ODAA Contingent Grant Award Letter 
 

II. STAFF COMMENTS AND ANALYSIS 
 
The next phase in airport improvements involves construction of new taxilanes to facilitate future 
hangar development.  The project will include an east/west taxiway extending east of the existing 
main taxiway and will be located to the northeast of the terminal building.  This taxilane has been 
designed far enough north of the terminal building for potential future expansion of the 
terminal/FBO apron and multiple future hangar sites.  This taxilane could be extended further 
east in the future as the airport develops.  Also included within the scope is a north/south taxilane 
running south from the new east/west taxiway.  This taxilane will open up development of more 
of the airport property for mid-sized hangars.   
 
The total project cost, including engineering, grant administration, and construction contract, is 
$2,026,125.00.  The ODAA grant will be in the amount of $1,187,818.75 and will fund 58.63% 
of the project.  The City will have a 5% share in the total project of $101,306.25.  The balance 
will be funded by FAA Non-Primary Entitlement and AIG grants.  A draft grant application is 
included with this staff report.  Our airport consultant had server issues due to an attempt on their 
system and the application is missing some exhibits and other information.  We should have the 
actual grant application for signature by the end of the first week in April. 
 

III. BUDGET IMPACT 
 
The City’s share of $101,306.25 will be taken from the Airport Fund.  While this fund has steadily 
declined due to no inflow of funds, there currently are sufficient funds to cover the City’s share 
of the project.  City staff will be requesting matching funds for our share of future airport projects 
as part of the FY 24-25 capital budget to ensure we can continue to take advantage of future 
90/10 FAA grants and 95/5 ODAA grants at the airport. 
 
 
 
 
 

7.d.v.



IV. RECOMMENDED ACTION 
 
Staff recommends authorization to submit a grant application to the Oklahoma Department of 
Aerospaace and Aeronautics for a $1,187,818.75 grant to facilitate the taxilane construction 
project. 

 



110 N. Robinson, Suite 200, Oklahoma City, OK 73102 | (405) 604-6900 | aerospace.ok.gov 

 
 
 
March 8, 2024 
 
The Honorable Dale Copeland 
Mayor 
City of Bartlesville 
401 S. Johnstone Ave. 
Bartlesville, OK 74003 
 
Dear Mayor Copeland, 
 
I am pleased to advise you that on March 6, 2024, during a regularly scheduled meeting, the Oklahoma 
Department of Aerospace & Aeronautics (Department) awarded a State Grant to the City of Bartlesville 
(Sponsor) for the Bartlesville Municipal Airport contingent upon receiving an acceptable grant 
application.  The project consists of constructing a taxilane. Based on bids, the total project cost is 
$2,026,125 and will be funded with $737,000 of federal grant funds, $1,187,818.75 of state grant funds 
and $101,306.25 of sponsor matching funds. 
 
At this time, the Department requests the following signed documents be submitted in electronic format: 

• State Grant Application 
• Construction Plans and Specifications 
• Project Sketch 
• Bid Tabs signed by the Engineer-of-Record 

 
Once the Department and Sponsor have signed and executed the State Grant Application, the 
Department will provide a separate written Notice to Proceed (NTP) to Construction. No construction 
work may occur before receipt of the NTP for Construction and should work begin prior to the Sponsor 
receiving this NTP, that work may be deemed ineligible for reimbursement. 
 
Michelle Bouziden is the Department’s Senior Project and Grants Manager and is the primary point of 
contact regarding the grant application process. Should you have any questions do not hesitate to 
contact her at michelle.bouziden@aerospace.ok.gov or 405-604-6912. 
 
Respectfully, 
 
 
 
 
 
Grayson Ardies 
Executive Director   
Oklahoma Department of Aerospace & Aeronautics

mailto:michelle.bouziden@aerospace.ok.gov


110 N. Robinson, Suite 200, Oklahoma City, OK 73102 | (405) 604-6900 | aerospace.ok.gov 

Cc: The Honorable J. Kevin Stitt 
Governor of Oklahoma 

 
 The Honorable James Lankford  

United States Senator 
 
The Honorable Markwayne Mullin 
United States Senator 
 
The Honorable Frank Lucas 
United States Congressman – OK-3 
 
The Honorable Bill Coleman 
Oklahoma State Senate – District 10 
 
The Honorable Judd Strom 

 Oklahoma State Representative – District 10 

Mr. Michael Richardson  
Airport Manager 
 
Mr. Micah Siemers 
Engineering Director 
 
Mr. Toby Baker, PE 
Parkhill Aviation Team Leader 

 
 

 



   
Oklahoma Department of Aerospace and Aeronautics 

 
STATE GRANT APPLICATION 

 
AIRPORT IMPROVEMENT  

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

Oklahoma Department of Aerospace and Aeronautics 
110 N. Robinson Ave., Suite 200 
Oklahoma City, Oklahoma 73102 

Phone: 405-604-6900  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



ii 

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 
 

1. PROJECT INFORMATION ................................................................................................................................... 1 

2. FUNDING ............................................................................................................................................................. 2 

3. EXHIBIT A, Airport Layout Drawing or Project Sketch .......................................................................................... 5 

4. EXHIBITS B, B-1, B-2, and B-3 ............................................................................................................................ 5 

5. EXHIBITS C, C-1, and C-2 ................................................................................................................................... 5 

6. EXHIBIT D, Airport Zoning Regulations ................................................................................................................ 5 

7. EXHIBIT E, Sponsor Deposit Verification ............................................................................................................. 6 

8. GRANT ASSURANCES ....................................................................................................................................... 6 

8.1 TIME LIMITS ................................................................................................................................. 6 

8.2 EQUAL RIGHTS ........................................................................................................................... 6 

8.3 AUTHORITY AND POWER .......................................................................................................... 8 

8.4 RESERVATION OF POWERS ..................................................................................................... 8 

8.5 ESSENTIAL FACILITIES .............................................................................................................. 8 

8.6 SPONSOR FUND AVAILABILITY AND MAINTENANCE ............................................................. 8 

8.7 AIRPORT LAYOUT PLAN ............................................................................................................ 9 

8.8 PROJECT FINANCIAL REPORT REQUIREMENTS .................................................................... 9 

8.9 ACKNOWLEDGMENT .................................................................................................................. 9 

8.10 TERMS AND CONDITIONS ......................................................................................................... 9 

8.11 LIFE OF THE AGREEMENT .......................................................................................................13 

8.12 HANGAR CONSTRUCTION PROJECTS....................................................................................13 

8.13 FUEL SYSTEM CONSTRUCTION PROJECTS ..........................................................................14 

9. SIGNATURE BLOCK ...........................................................................................................................................15 

EXHIBIT A AIRPORT LAYOUT DRAWING OR PROJECT SKETCH ............................................................16 

EXHIBIT B   PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS ..................................................................................................17 

EXHIBIT B-1 PROGRAM NARRATIVE .............................................................................................................18 

EXHIBIT B-2 PROJECT COSTS .......................................................................................................................19 

EXHIBIT B-3 PROJECT ENGINEERING ..........................................................................................................20 

EXHIBIT C STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE ................................................................................................21 

EXHIBIT C-1 SUSPENDED/DEBARMENT STATEMENT ................................................................................22 

EXHIBIT C-2 STATUTORY AFFIDAVIT ............................................................................................................23 

EXHIBIT D AIRPORT ZONING REGULATIONS ...........................................................................................24 

EXHIBIT E SPONSOR DEPOSIT VERIFICATION ........................................................................................25 

QUESTIONNAIRE ........................................................................................................................................................26 

CHECKLIST ..................................................................................................................................................................28 

PROJECT CLOSE-OUT DOCUMENTS........................................................................................................................29 

CLOSE OUT REQUIREMENTS ...............................................................................................................................30 

NOTICE OF FINAL INSPECTION ............................................................................................................................31 

FINAL INSPECTION REPORT ................................................................................................................................32 

FINAL ACCEPTANCE NOTICE ...............................................................................................................................33 



 

1 

APPLICATION and AGREEMENT  
AIRPORT IMPROVEMENT GRANT 

 

OKLAHOMA DEPARTMENT OF AEROSPACE AND AERONAUTICS 
110 N. Robinson Ave., Suite 200 

Oklahoma City, OKLAHOMA 73102 
 
State Project #:  
  
Date: 

1. PROJECT INFORMATION 
City of     Bartlesville                           hereinafter referred to as the (Sponsor) hereby 
makes application to the Oklahoma Department of Aerospace and Aeronautics 
(Department) for State Funds for the purpose of aiding in financing a project (hereinafter 
referred to as Project) for the development of the Airport (hereinafter referred to as Airport) 
located    2.5     miles _Northwest  (direction) from the City of   Bartlesville  ,     
Washington  County, Oklahoma. 

 
It is proposed that the Project shall consist of the following  
(brief project description required):  

Construction of Taxilane 

 

FUNDING SPONSOR 
STATE 

(DEPARTMENT) 
FEDERAL 

TOTAL 
PROJECT COST 

SHARES 
 $101,306.25  $1,187,818.75  $737,000.00   $2,026,125.00  

(5%) (58.63%) (36.37%)  
  Round Sponsor share up to the nearest dollar and Department share down to the nearest dollar 

 
 

The above identified project is depicted on the Airport Layout Plan or Sketch (Exhibit A) 
and major project items listed on the Project Costs page (Exhibit B-2). 

 

          Revised November 21, 2023          

BVO-24-FS 

3/7/2024 



 

2 

2. FUNDING 
 2.1 Projects funded by State Only Grant 

For state grants, the maximum level of participation for the Department shall not 
exceed 95 percent (95%) of “Total Eligible Project Cost.” The airport sponsor is 
required to provide a minimum of 5 percent (5%) of the project funding for the 
airport sponsor matching share.   

 
 Projects funded by Federal and State Grant 

For FAA grants for projects identified in the Department’s Airport Construction 

Program, the Department may provide half of the match that is required from the 
airport sponsor. 
 
For FAA grants for projects identified in the Department’s Airport Construction 

Program, the Department may provide supplemental state grant funding for project 
items. The maximum level of participation for the Department in such supplemental 
funding shall not exceed 95 percent (95%). The airport sponsor is required to 
provide a minimum of 5 percent (5%) of the supplemental project funding for the 
airport sponsor matching share. 
 
For non-primary entitlement (NPE) grants or special federal earmarks not identified 
in the Department’s Airport Construction Program, the Department will not provide 
half the match that is required from the airport sponsor.  If NPE grant funds are 
transferred from other airport sponsors to an airport sponsor for a project identified 
in the Department's Airport Construction Program, the Department may assist with 
half of any required match from the receiving airport sponsor so long as it will save 
the Department state funds. 
 
Projects funded by PREP  
For funding directed to the Department as a part of the Preserving Rural Economic 
Prosperity (PREP) program or other similar state program created by the 
legislature for specifically identified site locations and infrastructure projects of a 
non-competitive nature within the Oklahoma Airport System the Department may 
provide funds at a 100 percent (100%) level. 
 
Terminal Building Projects 
For terminal building projects, the Department’s maximum cost-share level of 
participation shall be fifty percent (50%) and shall not exceed $1,000,000. The 
airport sponsor is required to provide a dollar-for-dollar airport sponsor matching 



 

3 

share for every dollar the Department provides. Remaining share to complete 
project could come from any available source.   

 
Hangar Construction Projects 
For hangar construction projects, the Department may provide funding via grant or 
loan.  

(A) For state grants the Department’s maximum cost-share level of 
participation shall not exceed forty percent (40%). The airport sponsor is 
required to provide a minimum 5 percent (5%) for the airport sponsor 
matching share.  Remaining share to complete project could come from 
any available source.   
(B) For state loans the Department’s maximum cost-share level of 
participation shall not exceed seventy percent (70%). The airport sponsor 
is required to provide a minimum 5 percent (5%) for the airport sponsor 
matching share. Remaining share to complete project could come from any 
available source.   

   
Fuel System Construction Projects 
For fuel system construction projects, the Department’s maximum cost-share level 
of participation shall be fifty percent (50%) and shall not exceed $300,000. The 
airport sponsor is required to provide a minimum of 5 percent (5%) for the airport 
sponsor matching share. Remaining share to complete project could come from 
any available source.   

 
2.2 The Sponsor shall submit an invoice on a monthly basis to the Department for the 

Department’s share of the project cost as described in Section 2.1.  The 
Department will process payment to the Sponsor for the amount that is justified 
with required supporting documentation. The Department will not process any 
invoices until the Engineering Contract and Amendments, Resident 
Inspection Contract, and Acceptance Testing Contract (if required) has been 
submitted. In addition, a Construction Management Program (CMP) is 
required on all paving construction projects. Department staff reserves the 
right to request a CMP on other projects. The Department will also not 
process invoices that do not have the required documentation. The required 
documentation consists of the following: 

  
1. ODAA Partial Payment Request Form 
2. Copy of the Federal Aviation Administration Invoice Summary  (Projects 

funded by Federal and State Grant) 



 

4 

3. Copies of all vendor invoices.  
4. Contractor’s Application for Payment (State Form G702 or similarly adapted 

form) 
5. Construction Quantities Report signed by the Engineer-of-record 
6. Test invoices for the acceptance tests (8.10.6.3) performed in that period.  

 
2.3 The Department will process payments until 90% of the actual project cost of the 

Department’s share has been reached. The final 10% will not be released until: 
         

1. The final acceptance test summary report (8.10.6.4) has been submitted to 
the Department.  

2. The testing laboratory has submitted all acceptance test reports if 
requested by the Department. 

3. If required by the specifications, a Percentage within specification limits 
report (8.10.6.5) with supporting computations has been submitted to the 
Department. 

4. Final acceptance and project close-out documents have been submitted to 
the Department. 

5. Copy of the final signed Federal Aviation Administration Outlay Report and 
Invoice Summary (Projects funded by Federal and State Grant) 

6. FAA Grant Closeout Letter (Projects funded by Federal and State Grant) 
7. A satisfactory Financial Report has been completed by the Department. 

 
2.4 The Sponsor now has on deposit its share of the funding ($101,306.25) in a 

designated account, for use in defraying the costs of the project.  
 
2.5 Change Orders 

As described in Oklahoma Administrative Code §25:15-1-4(h) and 25:15-1-4(g)  
the B-2 form lists line-item project costs that cannot be exceeded.  During the 
course of the construction of a project, change orders and/or supplemental 
agreements may be necessary to increase or decrease bid or line-item amounts 
and quantities due to unknown or unforeseen circumstances.  A change order 
and/or supplemental agreement shall be sent to the Department along with a 
request to amend the approved grant's B-2 line-item or bid item.   

1. For change orders and/or supplemental agreements that will not increase 
the Department's overall share for the project the Director may approve 
such an amendment to the grant application. Change orders and/or 
supplemental agreements approved by the Director shall be presented to 
the Commission at its next regular or special business meeting stating the 



 

5 

reasons for the change order and/or supplemental agreement with such 
information as the Commission may require.   

2. For change orders and/or supplemental agreements involving a total 
increase to the Department's overall share for the project not to exceed Ten 
Thousand Dollars ($10,000) the Director may approve such an amendment 
to the grant application. Such change orders and/or supplemental 
agreements approved by the Director shall be presented to the 
Commission at its next regular or special business meeting stating the 
reasons for the change order and/or supplemental agreement with such 
information as the Commission may require. 

3.   Change orders and/or supplemental agreements involving a total increase 
to the Department's overall share for the project in excess of Ten Thousand 
Dollars ($10,000) must be presented to and approved by the Commission 
before such an amendment can be made to the grant application. 

3. EXHIBIT A, Airport Layout Drawing or Project Sketch 
An Airport Layout Drawing (ALD) or sketch showing the area and location of proposed 
construction or rehabilitation work must be provided by the Sponsor with a construction 
grant application.  

4. EXHIBITS B, B-1, B-2, and B-3 
Exhibits are to be filled out by the Sponsor and the Sponsor’s Engineer. Exhibits B and B-
1 have no specific format.  Blank forms for Exhibits B-2 and B-3 are attached.  All line 
items on the Exhibit B-2 are considered to be figures not to be exceeded.  Any amount 
expended in excess of each line item will not be considered for payment without a change 
order or a supplemental agreement approved by the Department.  A copy of the bid 
tabulation signed by the Engineer-of-record must accompany the grant application.   

5. EXHIBITS C, C-1, and C-2 
Exhibits are to be filled out by the Sponsor or the Sponsor’s Engineer. Forms C, C-1, and 
C-2 are attached. 

6. EXHIBIT D, Airport Zoning Regulations 
As required by 3 O.S. § 103 each airport shall have airport zoning regulations adopted 
and enacted in order to regulate and restrict the height of structures or trees and land uses 
within the airport hazard areas.  These airport zoning regulations must be adopted and 
enacted prior to funding.  If the Sponsor has not adopted airport zoning regulations, it shall 
be part of the next state funded project. 



 

6 

7. EXHIBIT E, Sponsor Deposit Verification 
The Sponsor is required to furnish verification to the Department that the Sponsor’s 

funding share has been deposited in a designated account for use in defraying the costs 
of the project.   

8. GRANT ASSURANCES 
The grant assurances must remain attached to the agreement and be submitted with, and 
as a part of, this application and agreement. 

 
In order to furnish the Department the Sponsor’s assurances required by the Laws and 

Regulations, the Sponsor hereby covenants and agrees with the State of Oklahoma as 
follows: 

 8.1 TIME LIMITS 
The Sponsor agrees that the project for which these funds are requested will be 
completed within two years from the date of grant approval. 

 8.2 EQUAL RIGHTS 
8.2.1 The Sponsor agrees that in its operation of the Airport and all facilities 

thereon, neither it nor any person or organization occupying space or 
facilities thereon will discriminate against any person or class of persons 
by reason of race, sex, color, creed, handicap or national origin in the use 
of any facility provided for the public on airport property. 

 
  8.2.2 The Sponsor will operate the Airport as such for the use and 

benefit of the public.  In furtherance of this covenant (but without limiting its 
general applicability and effect), the Sponsor specifically agrees that it will 
keep the Airport open to all types, kinds and classes of users:  Provided, 
that the Sponsor may establish such fair, equal, and nondiscriminatory 
conditions to be met by all users of the Airport as may be necessary for the 
safe and efficient operation of the Airport: And Provided Further, that the 
Sponsor may prohibit or limit any given type, kind, or class of aeronautical 
use of the Airport if such action is necessary to serve the civil aviation 
needs of the public. 

 
  8.2.3 In furtherance of this covenant (but without limiting its 

general applicability and effect), the Sponsor specifically covenants and 
agrees: 

 
 



 

7 

               8.2.3.1 That in any agreement, 
contract, lease or other arrangement under which a right or 
privilege at the Airport is granted to any person, firm, or 
corporation to render any service or furnish any parts, 
materials, or supplies (including the sale thereof) essential 
to the operation of aircraft at the Airport, the Sponsor will 
insert and enforce provisions requiring the contractor to: 

 
               8.2.3.1.1 furnish good, 

prompt and efficient service adequate to meet all 
demands for its service at the Airport; and 

 

    8.2.3.1.2 furnish said 
service on a fair, equal and nondiscriminatory basis 
to all users thereof, and, 

 
                                8.2.3.1.3 charge fair, 

reasonable and nondiscriminatory prices for each 
unit of sale or service: Provided that the contractor 
may be allowed to make reasonable and 
nondiscriminatory discounts, rebates or other similar 
types or price reductions to volume purchasers. 

 

                     8.2.3.2 That it will not exercise or 
grant any right or privilege which would operate to prevent 
any person, firm, or corporation operating aircraft on the 
Airport from performing any services on its own aircraft with 
its own employees (including, but not limited to, 
maintenance and repair) that it may choose to perform. 

 
                      8.2.3.3 That if the Sponsor exercises 

any of the rights or privileges set forth in paragraph 8.2.2 of 
the Equal Rights Section, it will be bound by and adhere to 
the condition specified for contractors as set forth in sub-
paragraph 8.2.3 of the Equal Rights Section. 

 
                        8.2.3.4 Essential facilities, as listed in 

8.5 (including night lighting systems, when installed) will be 
operated in such manner as to assure their availability to all 
users of the airport. 



 

8 

 
              8.2.4 Nothing contained herein shall be construed to prohibit the 

granting or exercise of an exclusive right for the furnishing of non aviation 
products and supplies or any service of a non aeronautical nature. 

 8.3 AUTHORITY AND POWER 
  The Sponsor certifies it has the legal authority and power to: 
 
  8.3.1 do all things necessary in order to undertake and carry out 

the Project in conformity with State and Federal Statutes, Acts, and 
Regulations; 

 

  8.3.2 receive, accept and disburse grants of funds from the State 
of Oklahoma in aid of the Project, in terms and conditions stated in the 
Laws, Acts, and Regulations; and 

 

  8.3.3 carry out all the provisions of this Application and 
Agreement. 

 8.4 RESERVATION OF POWERS 
The Sponsor will not enter into any transaction which would operate to deprive it 
of any of the rights and powers necessary to perform any or all of the covenants 
made herein.  If any arrangement is made for management or operation of the 
Airport by any agency or person other than the Sponsor or an employee of the 
Sponsor, the Sponsor will reserve sufficient powers and authority to insure that the 
Airport will be operated and maintained in accordance with these covenants. 

 8.5 ESSENTIAL FACILITIES 
Essential facilities are considered to be the following: a landing area and an aircraft 
parking area. 

 8.6 SPONSOR FUND AVAILABILITY AND MAINTENANCE 
It has sufficient funds available for that portion of the project costs which are not to 
be paid by the Department. It has sufficient funds available to assure operation 
and maintenance of items funded under the grant agreement which it will own or 
control.  

 
With respect to a project approved after January 1, 1995, for the replacement or 
reconstruction of pavement at the airport, it assures or certifies that it has 
implemented an effective airport pavement maintenance-management program 
and it assures that it will use such program for the useful life of any pavement 



 

9 

constructed, reconstructed or repaired with Federal financial assistance at the 
airport. It will provide such reports on pavement condition and pavement 
management programs as the Department determines may be useful.  

 8.7 AIRPORT LAYOUT PLAN 
The Sponsor of an airport included in the National Plan of Integrated Airport 
System (NPIAS) will keep up to date at all times an approved, reproducible Airport 
Layout Plan (ALP), showing: airport boundaries, aviation easements, location, and 
the nature of all existing and proposed airport facilities, structures (such as 
runways, taxiways, aprons, terminal buildings, hangars, roads) including all 
proposed extensions and the location of all existing and proposed non aviation 
areas.  The ALP must be prepared in accordance with FAA Advisory Circular 
150/5300-13 (most current edition). 
 
The Sponsor will not make or permit to be made any changes or alterations to the 
Airport or any of its facilities other than in conformity with the ALP as so approved 
by the Department and/or the FAA, if such changes or alterations might adversely 
affect the safety, utility, or efficiency of the Airport.  

 8.8 PROJECT FINANCIAL REPORT REQUIREMENTS 
The Department shall prepare a financial report of income and expenditures of all 
project funds (Federal, Department, and Sponsor). The final 10% of the actual 
project cost of state grant funds will not be released until a satisfactory financial 
report has been prepared by the Department. 
 
Records of expenditures shall be maintained by the Sponsor for not less than three 
(3) years.  Access to these records will be provided at the grantees regular place 
of business.   

 8.9 ACKNOWLEDGMENT 
The Sponsor assures that no work has been started nor has any work been 
completed on any of the Project(s) for which funds are requested in this Application 
and Agreement.  The Sponsor further acknowledges that the funds will be used 
only for the purpose described in this Agreement. 

           8.10 TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
Upon execution by the Sponsor and the Department, the offer and acceptance of 
this grant shall constitute a grant agreement between the Department and the 
Sponsor.  The Department and the Sponsor shall be bound by all of the terms and 
conditions of the grant agreement and the grant assurances. The Department and 



 

10 

the Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) representatives will have access to the 
job site and project records at all times.  In addition to all other requirements 
imposed by law or by this agreement, all grants or loans by the Department shall 
be subject to the following terms and conditions: 

 
8.10.1 The period of the grant or loan agreement shall be twenty (20) years from 

the date of the Sponsor’s acceptance and/or the life of the improvements 
contemplated under the grant or loan application, whichever is longer. 

 
  8.10.2 The airport and/or visual navigational aids shall remain 

under the Sponsor’s control and shall be maintained by the Sponsor in a 

safe and serviceable condition during the period of this agreement. 
 
  8.10.3 The Sponsor assures that all land to be constructed upon is 

held in clear fee simple title by the Sponsor or is leased from the Federal 
Government of the United States. The Sponsor assures that, if the land is 
leased, the lease will be maintained current for a period not less than the 
life of the agreement.  The Sponsor assures that the land, whether leased 
or held in fee simple, shall be pledged to airport use and shall not be 
removed in whole or in part from such use without prior written approval 
from the Department. In addition, airport property as defined in the airport 
layout plan cannot be transferred by the airport sponsor without the written 
approval of the Department. 

 
The Sponsor further assures the possession of sufficient land for 
development, operation and maintenance of the airport or air navigational 
facility. This requirement shall include the amount of land needed for 
necessary runways, taxiways, aircraft parking areas and runway protection 
zones. 

 
  8.10.4 Consistent with safety and security requirements, a Sponsor 

shall make the airport or navigational facility available to all types, kinds 
and classes of aeronautical use without discrimination between such types, 
kinds and classes and shall provide adequate public access during the 
period of this agreement. 

 
  8.10.5 The Sponsor shall not grant or permit anyone to exercise an 

exclusive right for the conduct of any aeronautical activity on or about an 
airport project landing area.  Aeronautical activities include, but are not 



 

11 

limited to scheduled  airline  flights; charter  flights,  flight  instruction;  
aircraft sales, 
rental and repair; sale of aviation petroleum products; and aerial 
application. The landing area consists of runways or landing strips, 
taxiways,  parking aprons,  roads,  airport  lighting, and  navigational aids. 

 
  8.10.6 The Sponsor shall carry out and complete a project without 

undue delay and in accordance with the plans and specifications submitted 
to the Department. The Sponsor shall ensure that the following is provided 
to the Department: 

 
1. On all paving construction projects, the sponsor shall furnish a 

Construction Management Program (CMP) to the Department prior to 
the start of construction which shall detail the measures and 
procedures to be used to comply with the quality control provisions of 
the construction contract, including, but not limited to, all quality control 
provisions and tests required by the specifications.  Department staff 
reserves the right to request a CMP on other projects. The CMP shall 
include as a minimum: 

 
a. The name of the person representing the Sponsor who has overall 

responsibility for contract administration for the Grant and the 
authority to take necessary actions to comply with the contract. 

b. Names of testing laboratories and consulting engineer firms with 
quality control responsibilities on the project, together with a 
description of the services to be provided.  

c. Procedures for determining that testing laboratories meet the 
requirements of the American Society of Testing and Materials 
standards on laboratory evaluation referenced in the contract 
specifications (D 3666, C 1077). 

d. Qualifications of engineering, supervision, and construction 
inspection personnel. 

e. A listing of all tests required by the contract specifications, including 
the type and frequency of tests to be taken, the method of sampling, 
the applicable test standard, and the acceptance criteria or 
tolerances permitted for each type of test. 

f. Procedures for ensuring that the tests are taken in accordance with 
the program, that they are documented daily, and that the proper 
corrective actions, where necessary, are undertaken. 

 
2. Weekly Progress Report: The sponsor shall ensure that a weekly 

progress report is submitted using FAA form 5370-1 to the Department. 
3. Acceptance Tests: The Sponsor shall ensure that the acceptance 



 

12 

testing laboratory provides a copy of all acceptance tests as and when 
the results become available.  

4. Summary Report: Upon completion of the project, the Sponsor shall 
provide the Department a final acceptance test summary report. The 
report shall document the results of all acceptance tests performed and 
the location of the material tested. The report shall highlight those 
acceptance tests that were out-of-tolerance and include the pay 
reductions applied and reasons for accepting any out-of-tolerance 
material. An interim test and quality control report shall be submitted, if 
requested by the Department. 

5. When the specifications provide for acceptance based on the method 
of estimating percentage of material within specification limits (PWL), 
the Sponsor will submit a final report of PWL computations in 
accordance with section 110, AC 150/5370-10 (most current version) 
with the summary report. 

6. The Department, at its discretion, reserves the right to conduct 
independent tests and to reduce grant payments accordingly if such 
independent tests determine that sponsor test results are inaccurate.  

 
  8.10.7 The Sponsor, if requested by the Department, shall submit 

to the Department annual statements of airport or air navigation facility 
revenues and expenses. 

 
  8.10.8 The Sponsor will comply with the Municipal Airports Act of 

1948 (Oklahoma Statutes of 1991, Title 3, Section 65.1 et seq.) and 
specifically, Sec. 65.12, which requires: “The revenues obtained by a 

municipality from the ownership, control or operation of any airport or 
navigation facility, including proceeds from the sale of any airport or portion 
thereof of air navigation facility property, shall be deposited in a special 
fund to be designated as the ‘Airport Fund’, which revenues shall be 

appropriated solely to, and used by the municipality for, the purposes 
authorized by this act.” 

 
  8.10.9 All development of an airport constructed with grant funds 

shall be consistent with the approved Airport Layout Plan.  A reproducible 
copy of such plan (as specified by the Department) and all subsequent 
modifications thereto, shall be filed with the Department. 

 
          8.10.10 The Sponsor shall comply with the “Public Competitive 



 

13 

Bidding Act of 1984" (Oklahoma Statutes of 1991, Title 61, Sec. 101 et 
seq.), which relates to the execution of certain public agency contracts, etc. 

 
           8.10.11 After actual bids on the project are received, a 

tabulation of all bids on the project must be signed by the Engineer-
of-record and must accompany the grant application. 

 
           8.10.12 When airport lighting is part of a project, the Sponsor shall 

operate such lighting from sunset to sunrise either manually or by remote 
control. 

 
           8.10.13 The Department shall not be a party to any contract or 

commitment which a Sponsor may enter into or assume in carry out a 
project. 

 
           8.10.14 It being further understood and agreed that should the 

Sponsor fail to do those things herein described and approved and within 
the time frame prescribed, that said funds shall, without notice, be 
withdrawn and revert to the Department. It is the Sponsor’s responsibility, 

when delays or problems are encountered, to notify the Department and 
request from the Department a written time extension and/or deviation. 

 
           8.11 LIFE OF THE AGREEMENT 

The covenants and assurances shall become effective upon acceptance by the 
Sponsor of an offer of State aid for the Project or any portion thereof, made by the 
Department, and shall constitute a part of the Project Agreement thus formed.  
These covenants and assurances shall remain in full force and effect throughout 
the useful life of the facilities developed under this Project; but, in any event a 
minimum of twenty (20) years from the date of said acceptance of this offer of State 
aid for the Project. 
 
 

           8.12 HANGAR CONSTRUCTION PROJECTS 
8.12.1 The Sponsor will ensure any hangars built using Department funds will 

receive fair market rental rates compared to similar hangar facilities at 
airports that have similar amenities and capabilities within the region in 
which that airport is located. 

 



 

14 

8.12.2 The Sponsor agrees to include in any rental agreement the most up-to-date 
Federal Aviation Administration hangar use policy and agrees to actively 
enforce that policy to its full effect. 

 
8.12.3 The Sponsor agrees that any hangar built using Department funds will not 

be used as a permanent or semi-permanent residence.  Hangars may have 
crew quarters for intermittent overnight stays at the discretion of the 
Sponsor. 

 
8.12.4 The Sponsor will include in any rental agreement that the aircraft based in 

a hangar built using Department funds will be in compliance with federal 
airworthiness requirements and have complied with state aircraft excise tax 
and aircraft registration requirements. 

 
           8.13 FUEL SYSTEM CONSTRUCTION PROJECTS 

The airport sponsor understands that fuel systems funded by the Department must 
be operated by the public airport sponsor and not a third party entity or contractor. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

15 

9. SIGNATURE BLOCK 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Sponsor has caused this APPLICATION AND ASSURANCES to 
be duly executed in its name, this           day of     ,       . 
 
 
SPONSOR’S ACCEPTANCE: 
(Mayor, City Manager or other designated 
official) 

 TRUST, IF REQUIRED: 

 
 
 

  
 
 

Signature 
 
Dale Copeland, Mayor 

 Signature 
 
 

Name and Title 
 
401 South Johnstone Avenue 

 Name and Title 
 
 

Address 
 
Bartlesville, Oklahoma 74003 

 Address 
 
 

City/Town, State, Zip            City/Town, State, Zip 
 
 
NOTE: APPLICATION MUST BE SIGNED BY MAYOR, CITY MANAGER, OR OTHER DESIGNATED 

PERSON WHO IS AUTHORIZED TO SIGN CONTRACTS FOR THE SPONSOR. IF THE DAY 
TO DAY ADMINSTRATION OF THE AIRPORT IS PERFORMED BY A TRUST, THE 
CHAIRMAN OF THE TRUST MUST ALSO SIGN THE APPLICATION. 

 
 
 
DO NOT WRITE BELOW THIS LINE 
The work and expenditure of funds in the amount of $    were approved in a 
regular, convened meeting of the Oklahoma Department of Aerospace and Aeronautics on the 
_________ day of                    , __________.  By its approval, the Commission 
authorized the Director to execute this agreement.  
 

                               

Executive Director 
Oklahoma Department of Aerospace and Aeronautics 
 
 

 



 

16 

EXHIBIT A AIRPORT LAYOUT DRAWING OR PROJECT SKETCH 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

17 

EXHIBIT B   PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS 
 

  

Previously submitted.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

18 

EXHIBIT B-1 PROGRAM NARRATIVE 
 

 

The objective of the proposed project is to design and construct a new taxilane that will facilitate 
the airport’s new hangar development to the north. These taxilanes will go to improve access to 
additional development areas to help ensure successful future economic development 
opportunities for years to come.  



 

19 

EXHIBIT B-2 PROJECT COSTS 

AIRPORT: Bartlesville Municipal Airport  PROJECT #: BVO-24-FS 
CITY: Bartlesville  DATE: 3/7/2024 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION: Construct Taxilane 

 

 (For funding share information, see section 2.0 Funding) Note: Sponsor share cannot be lower than 5% 
Note: The Department will only participate in costs identified in the contracts 

Round Sponsor share up to the nearest dollar and Department share down to the nearest dollar 

Item  Description Amount Ineligible 

Amount 

Remarks 

(a) Advertising 800    

(b) Engineering 163,900   

(c) Grant Administration 22,500   

(d) Testing 19,000   

(e) Inspection 123,750   

(f) Bidding Phase Services 7,600   

(g) Other: Update DBE Goal 7,000   

(h) Construction Administration 25,000   

(i)  Geotechnical Investigation 14,500   

(j)  Hangar Development Plan 98,250   

(k) Surveying Services 12,500   

(l) Construction   (attach bid tabs)    

(m)  Base Bid-Schedules 1, 2 and Alt 1 1,531,325   

(n)   Alternate 1 Bid    

(o) Alternate 2 Bid    

(p) TOTAL ELIGIBLE PROJECT COST     

(q) Ineligible Costs:    

Sponsor Share  
$101,306.25  

(5%)** 

State Share: 
$1,187,818.75 

(58.63%) 

Federal Share: 
$737,000 
(36.37%) 

Total Project Cost: 
$2,026,125 

 



BASE BID-SCHEDULE 1

Item No. Description Quantity Unit
Unit 
Price Amount

Unit 
Price Amount

Unit 
Price Amount

Unit 
Price Amount

Unit 
Price Amount

Unit 
Price Amount

1 MOBILIZATION 1              LS $145,000.00 $145,000.00 $50,000.00 $50,000.00 $85,000.00 $85,000.00 $196,700.00 $196,700.00 $93,906.73 $93,906.73 $66,598.32 $66,598.32
2 LOW PROFILE AIRCRAFT BARRICADES 1              LS $5,000.00 $5,000.00 $1,500.00 $1,500.00 $1,000.00 $1,000.00 $1,500.00 $1,500.00 $1,452.00 $1,452.00 $6,668.91 $6,668.91
3 TEMPORARY EROSION CONTROL 1              LS $9,000.00 $9,000.00 $22,729.00 $22,729.00 $7,000.00 $7,000.00 $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $11,616.00 $11,616.00 $21,473.88 $21,473.88

4
REMOVE RUNWAY LIGHTS AND RECONNECT 
EXISTING TAXIWAY CIRCUIT 1              LS $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $36,500.00 $36,500.00 $19,100.00 $19,100.00 $44,394.60 $44,394.60 $40,909.24 $40,909.24 $18,960.00 $18,960.00

5 REMOVE, STOCKPILE AND REPLACE TOPSOIL 3,070       CY $12.00 $36,840.00 $10.00 $30,700.00 $12.00 $36,840.00 $10.00 $30,700.00 $9.88 $30,331.60 $14.30 $43,901.00
6 UNCLASSIFED EXCAVATION AND EMBANKMENT 4,485       CY $20.00 $89,700.00 $10.00 $44,850.00 $16.00 $71,760.00 $9.00 $40,365.00 $10.38 $46,554.30 $30.03 $134,684.55
7 BORROW MATERIAL (FROM OFF-SITE) 715          CY $30.00 $21,450.00 $32.00 $22,880.00 $29.00 $20,735.00 $35.00 $25,025.00 $44.35 $31,710.25 $48.08 $34,377.20
8 6" CRUSHED AGGREGATE BASE COURSE 5,315       SY $22.00 $116,930.00 $10.00 $53,150.00 $9.40 $49,961.00 $17.50 $93,012.50 $13.69 $72,762.35 $17.93 $95,297.95
9 HYDRATED LIME 90            TON $340.00 $30,600.00 $250.00 $22,500.00 $335.00 $30,150.00 $575.00 $51,750.00 $369.39 $33,245.10 $313.44 $28,209.60
10 8" LIME TREATED SUBGRADE (4%) 5,315       SY $9.00 $47,835.00 $9.50 $50,492.50 $8.00 $42,520.00 $10.00 $53,150.00 $4.40 $23,386.00 $14.06 $74,728.90
11 12" PC CONCRETE SURFACE COURSE 5,100       SY $130.00 $663,000.00 $97.50 $497,250.00 $118.00 $601,800.00 $119.00 $606,900.00 $124.77 $636,327.00 $127.82 $651,882.00
12 MARKING WITH REFLECTIVE MEDIA 805          SF $15.00 $12,075.00 $5.00 $4,025.00 $4.50 $3,622.50 $4.50 $3,622.50 $4.65 $3,743.25 $5.56 $4,475.80
13 MARKING WITH-OUT REFLECTIVE MEDIA 800          SF $15.00 $12,000.00 $5.00 $4,000.00 $4.50 $3,600.00 $4.50 $3,600.00 $4.65 $3,720.00 $8.89 $7,112.00

14
SOLID SLAB SODDING AND WATERING UNTIL 
ESTABLISHED 6,900       SY $8.00 $55,200.00 $8.00 $55,200.00 $7.80 $53,820.00 $10.00 $69,000.00 $8.07 $55,683.00 $7.72 $53,268.00

15 SPRIGGING 1.5 AC $10,000.00 $15,000.00 $10,945.00 $16,417.50 $10,500.00 $15,750.00 $19,000.00 $28,500.00 $11,557.92 $17,336.88 $8,955.00 $13,432.50
16 THIRD PARTY INSURANCE 1              LS $0.00 $0.00 $2,025.00 $2,025.00 $0.00 $0.00 $100.00 $100.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

TOTAL $1,269,630.00 $914,219.00 $1,042,658.50 $1,258,319.60 $1,102,683.70 $1,255,070.61

BASE BID-SCHEDULE 2

Item No. Description Quantity Unit
Unit 
Price Amount

Unit 
Price Amount

Unit 
Price Amount

Unit 
Price Amount

Unit 
Price Amount

Unit 
Price Amount

17 TEMPORARY EROSION CONTROL 1              LS $5,000.00 $5,000.00 $1,000.00 $1,000.00 $8,500.00 $8,500.00 $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $10,825.71 $10,825.71 $16,672.27 $16,672.27
18 CLEARING, GRUBBING, AND TREE REMOVAL 1              LS $15,000.00 $15,000.00 $15,000.00 $15,000.00 $30,000.00 $30,000.00 $29,000.00 $29,000.00 $20,572.66 $20,572.66 $33,667.77 $33,667.77
19 REMOVE FENCING 1              LS $5,000.00 $5,000.00 $5,000.00 $5,000.00 $6,000.00 $6,000.00 $3,200.00 $3,200.00 $17,191.68 $17,191.68 $16,449.97 $16,449.97
20 INSTALL 8' TALL CHAIN LINK FENCE WITH CLIMB BARRIER 1,150       LF $40.00 $46,000.00 $52.00 $59,800.00 $43.00 $49,450.00 $46.00 $52,900.00 $178.89 $205,723.50 $178.32 $205,068.00
21 REMOVE, STOCKPILE AND REPLACE TOPSOIL 2,700       CY $12.00 $32,400.00 $10.00 $27,000.00 $12.00 $32,400.00 $10.00 $27,000.00 $13.96 $37,692.00 $17.46 $47,142.00
22 UNCLASSIFED EXCAVATION AND EMBANKMENT 3,731       CY $20.00 $74,620.00 $10.00 $37,310.00 $16.00 $59,696.00 $9.00 $33,579.00 $8.62 $32,161.22 $28.88 $107,751.28
23 BORROW MATERIAL (FROM OFF-SITE) 2,302       CY $30.00 $69,060.00 $32.00 $73,664.00 $29.00 $66,758.00 $35.00 $80,570.00 $39.57 $91,090.14 $48.08 $110,680.16
24 INSTALL 30" HDPE 270          LF $180.00 $48,600.00 $150.00 $40,500.00 $140.00 $37,800.00 $245.00 $66,150.00 $289.89 $78,270.30 $289.12 $78,062.40
25 HYDRATED LIME 48            TON $340.00 $16,320.00 $250.00 $12,000.00 $335.00 $16,080.00 $575.00 $27,600.00 $369.39 $17,730.72 $313.44 $15,045.12
26 8" LIME TREATED SUBGRADE (4%) 2,800       SY $9.00 $25,200.00 $9.50 $26,600.00 $8.00 $22,400.00 $10.00 $28,000.00 $8.35 $23,380.00 $14.91 $41,748.00
27 8" PC CONCRETE SURFACE COURSE 2,650       SY $90.00 $238,500.00 $84.00 $222,600.00 $103.00 $272,950.00 $86.00 $227,900.00 $101.54 $269,081.00 $160.36 $424,954.00
28 MARKING WITH REFLECTIVE MEDIA 640          SF $15.00 $9,600.00 $5.00 $3,200.00 $4.50 $2,880.00 $4.50 $2,880.00 $4.65 $2,976.00 $5.56 $3,558.40
29 MARKING WITH-OUT REFLECTIVE MEDIA 640          SF $15.00 $9,600.00 $5.00 $3,200.00 $4.50 $2,880.00 $4.50 $2,880.00 $4.65 $2,976.00 $8.89 $5,689.60

30
SOLID SLAB SODDING AND WATERING UNTIL 
ESTABLISHED 5,950       SY $8.00 $47,600.00 $8.00 $47,600.00 $7.80 $46,410.00 $10.00 $59,500.00 $8.07 $48,016.50 $7.72 $45,934.00

31 SPRIGGING 1.6 AC $10,000.00 $16,000.00 $10,945.00 $17,512.00 $10,500.00 $16,800.00 $19,000.00 $30,400.00 $11,557.93 $18,492.69 $11,250.00 $18,000.00

TOTAL $658,500.00 $591,986.00 $671,004.00 $681,559.00 $876,180.12 $1,170,422.97

ALTERNATE NO. 1

Item No. Description Quantity Unit
Unit 
Price Amount

Unit 
Price Amount

Unit 
Price Amount

Unit 
Price Amount

Unit 
Price Amount

Unit 
Price Amount

32 ADDITIONAL 2" P.C. CONCRETE THICKNESS 2,650       SY $20.00 $53,000.00 $10.00 $26,500.00 $11.00 $29,150.00 $11.00 $29,150.00 $15.32 $40,598.00 $23.85 $63,202.50

33
REDUCTION OF UNCLASSIFED EXCAVATION AND 
EMBANKMENT (138)         LS $10.00 -$1,380.00 $10.00 -$1,380.00 $25.00 -$3,450.00 $14.70 -$2,028.60 $58.24 -$8,037.12 $30.03 -$4,144.14
TOTAL $51,620.00 $25,120.00 $25,700.00 $27,121.40 $32,560.88 $59,058.36

TOTAL BID SCHEDULES 1, 2 AND ALTERNATE NO 1 $1,979,750.00 $1,531,325.00 $1,739,362.50 $1,967,000.00 $2,011,424.70 $2,484,551.94

Bright Lighting, Inc.R&L Construction, LLC Contech, Inc.

10:30 AM, Thursday, February 29, 2024

PARKHILL

CONSTRUCT TAXILANE

BARTLESVILLE MUNICIPAL AIRPORT, BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA

AIP 3-40-0007-015-2024, ODAA BVO-24-FS

Paragon Contractors, LLCTri-Star Construction, LLC



 

20 

EXHIBIT B-3 PROJECT ENGINEERING 
(Project Engineer to provide the following information) 

 
Here are the costs which would be incurred in providing the engineering data necessary 

to make an investigation, testing, estimates, prepare plans and specifications, supervise 

award of contract, prepare contract, stake the work, supervise the work, make final 

inspection and final contract estimates for: 

Bartlesville Municipal Airport - Construct Taxilane 
(Name of Airport and Project) 

 

 

An outline of the work to be performed is as follows:   

Final Design Services, ODAA Grant Administration, Construction Materials Testing and 
Review, Resident Project Representative Services, Bid Phase Services, Update DBE 
Goal, Construction Administration, Geotechnical Investigation, Hangar Development 
Plan, and Surveying Services 

 

For Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) funded projects the work will be accomplished 

in accordance with the FAA Standards for Specifying Construction of Airports (current 

edition). The work may be accomplished in accordance with the Oklahoma Department 

of Transportation Standard Specifications (current edition), with prior written approval by 

FAA. 

 

The engineering fees will not exceed $493,700.00. 

 

        

Parkhill 
       Name of Engineering Firm 

        

 
       Signature of Engineer 



 

21 

EXHIBIT C STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE 
 

The Sponsor is in compliance with all terms and conditions of any agreement with the 

State of Oklahoma related to the development, operation or maintenance of an airport 

owned by the Sponsor.  

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

Signature (Mayor, City Manager or designated Official) 
 
 
 
Dale Copeland, Mayor 

 Signature (Mayor, City Manager or designated Official) 
 
 
 
 

Name and Title 
 
 
 
 

 Name and Title 
 
 
 
 

Date 
 
 
 
73-6005079 

 Date 
 
 
 
 

   Sponsor’s Federal Identification Number          

 

Sponsor’s Federal Identification Number          

 

  
  
  
NOTE:     To be signed by same person(s) that signs the Application and Assurances. 



 

22 

EXHIBIT C-1 SUSPENDED/DEBARMENT STATEMENT 
 
The Sponsor hereby specifically agrees that it shall not award the contract for which this grant is 

given, nor shall bidding documents be given to any contractor which or who is subject to 

suspension or debarment by the U.S. Department of Transportation or any of its agencies, or the 

Oklahoma Department of Transportation at the time of the bidding or award of the contract.  

Violation of this provision shall void this grant. 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

Signature (Mayor, City Manager or designated Official) 
 
 
 
Dale Copeland, Mayor 

 Signature (Mayor, City Manager or designated Official) 
 
 
 
 

Name and Title 
 
 
 
 

 Name and Title 
 
 
 
 

Date 
 
 
 
73-6005079 

 Date 
 
 
 
 

   Sponsor’s Federal Identification Number          

 

Sponsor’s Federal Identification Number          

 

  
  
  
NOTE:     To be signed by same person(s) that signs the Application and Assurances. 



 

23 

EXHIBIT C-2 STATUTORY AFFIDAVIT 
 

STATE OF OKLAHOMA 

COUNTY OF    Osage                          . 

AFFIDAVIT 

 and  
 (Type name)    (Type name) 

of lawful age, and having been first duly sworn, on oath, states: 

1.   That (s)he/they is/are the agent authorized by the Sponsor to submit the attached Grant 

Application to the State of Oklahoma. 

2.   That the Sponsor has not paid, given, or donated or agreed to pay, give, or donate to any 

officer or employee of the State of Oklahoma any money or other thing of value, either directly or 

indirectly, in the procuring of the grant. 

3.   That no person who has been involved in any manner in the development of this grant while 

employed by the State of Oklahoma shall be employed to fulfill any of the services provided for 

under this contract. 

4.   That, to the best of his/her/their knowledge and belief, the Sponsor has not previously 

submitted a grant request to the Oklahoma Department of Aerospace and Aeronautics or any 

other agency of the State of Oklahoma which would result in a substantial duplication of the project 

proposed in the Grant Application and Assurances. 

 
 
___________________________________ 
Affiant (Signature of Mayor, City Manager  
or designated Official) 

 
 
___________________________________ 
Affiant (Signature of Trust, if required) 

 

Subscribed and sworn to before me this      day of          ,     ____ . 

 

 Seal            

       Notary Public 

My commission expires:    

 

NOTE:     To be signed by the same person(s) that signs Application and Assurances. 
 



 

24 

EXHIBIT D AIRPORT ZONING REGULATIONS 
 
 

 
Indicate if the city has adopted Airport Zoning Regulations, date it was adopted and if a 
copy is on file with the Oklahoma Department of Aerospace and Aeronautics. 

 
 



 

25 

EXHIBIT E SPONSOR DEPOSIT VERIFICATION 
PLEASE READ CAREFULLY 

 
   

 
SPONSOR: 

 
City of Bartlesville 

  
DATE: 

 
3/7/2024 

 
AIRPORT NAME: 

 
Bartlesville Municipal 
Airport 

  
STATE PROJECT #:  

 
BVO-24-FS 

 

 
This form provides verification to the Oklahoma Department of Aerospace and Aeronautics that 
the Sponsor’s share has been deposited in a designated account, however it does not have to 
be a designated airport-only account. The funds will be for use in defraying the costs of the 
project.   

 
This form must be completed and submitted as part of the grant application to the Oklahoma 
Department of Aerospace and Aeronautics. 

 

 Account Number  
  

 Type of Account 
  

                                    

  City of Bartlesville 
Financial Institution (Please print)  Name of Sponsor (Please print) 

  Dale Copeland 
Bank Representative (Please print)  Sponsor Official (Please print) 

  Mayor 
Title of Representative (Please print)  Title of Official (Please print) 

  
 
 

Signature of Representative  Signature of Official 
 
  

401 South Johnstone Avenue, 
Bartlesville, OK 74003 

Address  Address 

  918-338-4256 
Phone  Phone 



 

26 

QUESTIONNAIRE 
(PLEASE TYPE OR PRINT ANSWERS) 

 

1. City   Bartlesville     Airport  Bartlesville Municipal Airport  

 

2. Official point of contact for the Sponsor: 

 Name Mike Richardson 

Address 401 South Johnstone Avenue, Bartlesville, OK 74003 

Telephone Number 918-661-3500 

Official Position Airport Manager 

Email msrichardson@cityofbartlesville.org 
 

3. Sponsor contact that can verify payment information: 

 
 Name Mike Richardson 

Address 401 South Johnstone Avenue, Bartlesville, OK 74003 

Telephone Number 918-661-3500 

Official Position Airport Manager 

Email msrichardson@cityofbartlesville.org 
 

4. State payments should be made to:  

 

5. Method of performance:  Contract and/or Force Account   Contract       

 

6. Number of aircraft based at the airport   47      

 

7. Is the Airport operated by a Trust Authority?  If yes, provide the name of the Trust Authority 

and a copy of the Trust Agreement. 

No 
 

 

 

 

City of Bartlesville 



 

27 

8. Is there a Fixed Base Operator(s) on the Airport?  If yes: 

 
 Name Bartlesville Aviation 

Address 401 Wiley Post Rd. Bartlesville OK 74003 

Telephone Number 918-661-3121 
 

9. Will financial assistance from a Federal source be required?  Yes   X       No            

 

10. Name of your State 

Senator:  

 

11. Name of your State Representative:   

 

Julie Daniels 

Judd Strom 



 

28 

CHECKLIST 
When completed, this Checklist becomes a part of the Grant Application and Agreement. 
 
Answer yes or no on the appropriate lines.  Sign the document. 
 
1. Is the Application properly signed and dated   Yes     
 
2. Is Exhibit A attached    Yes                         
 
3. Are Exhibits B and B-1 attached   Yes       
 
4. Are Exhibits B-2 and B-3 attached   Yes       
 
5. Are Exhibits C, C-1, and C-2 attached   Yes      
 
6. Is Exhibit D attached   Yes        
 
7. Is Exhibit E attached   Yes        
 
8. Have all questions been answered on the Questionnaire         Yes                        
 
9. Are yearly funds allocated for airport maintenance   Yes                                             
 
10. Have you furnished the names of your Senator and Representative  ___Yes__               
 
11. Has any work been started on this project   No      
 
12. If the answer to any of the above questions (except #11) is no, explain below or on an 

attached sheet of paper. 

 

Checklist completed by: 
 
Name   Dale Copeland                 
 
Position  Mayor       
 
Telephone Number   918-338-4256     

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Agenda Item ___ 
March 26, 2024 

Prepared by Jason Muninger, CFO/City Clerk 
Accounting and Finance 

 
 
 
I. SUBJECT, ATTACHMENTS, AND BACKGROUND 

 
Receipt of Interim Financials for the eight months ending February 29, 2024.  
 
Attachments: 

Interim Financials for February 29, 2024 
 

II. STAFF COMMENTS AND ANALYSIS 
 
Staff has prepared the condensed Interim Financial Statements for February 2024; these should 
provide sufficient information for the City Council to perform its fiduciary responsibility. All 
supplementary, detailed information is available for the Council’s use at any time upon request. 
All information is subject to change pending audit. 
 

III. BUDGET IMPACT 
 
 N/A 

 
 

IV. RECOMMENDED ACTION 
 
Staff recommends the approval the Interim Financials for February 29, 2024. 

7.e.i.



Ward 1 - Dale Copeland, Mayor
Ward 2 - Loren Roszel
Ward 3 - Jim Curd, Vice Mayor
Ward 4 - Billie Roane
Ward 5 - Trevor Dorsey

Jason Muninger
Finance Director

Alicia Shelton
Accountant

Mike Bailey

Prepared by:

REPORT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

For The Eight Months Ended February 29, 2024

CITY COUNCIL

City Manager



TABLE OF CONTENTS

HIGHLIGHTS

MAJOR FUNDS:
GENERAL FUND
WASTEWATER OPERATING/BMA WASTEWATER FUNDS
WATER OPERATING/BMA WATER FUNDS
SANITATION

OTHER FUNDS:
REVENUE BUDGET STATUS
EXPENDITURE BUDGET STATUS
CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE

EXPLANATORY MEMO



FINANCIAL STATEMENT REVENUE HIGHLIGHTS
(Dashed line represents average percent of year for 4 preceding fiscal years)

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

66.0%

68.0%

70.0%

72.0%

74.0%

76.0%

78.0%

 -

 2,000,000

 4,000,000

 6,000,000

 8,000,000

 10,000,000

 12,000,000

 14,000,000

FY 2020 FY 2021 FY 2022 FY 2023 FY 2024

GENERAL FUND SALES TAX

YTD

% OF YR

65.0%
66.0%
67.0%
68.0%
69.0%
70.0%
71.0%
72.0%
73.0%
74.0%

 -
 500,000

 1,000,000
 1,500,000
 2,000,000
 2,500,000
 3,000,000
 3,500,000
 4,000,000
 4,500,000

FY 2020 FY 2021 FY 2022 FY 2023 FY 2024

WASTEWATER FEES

YTD

% OF YR

0.0%
10.0%
20.0%
30.0%
40.0%
50.0%
60.0%
70.0%
80.0%
90.0%

 -
 1,000,000
 2,000,000
 3,000,000
 4,000,000
 5,000,000
 6,000,000
 7,000,000
 8,000,000
 9,000,000

FY 2020 FY 2021 FY 2022 FY 2023 FY 2024

WATER FEES

YTD

% OF YR

64.0%

65.0%

66.0%

67.0%

68.0%

69.0%

70.0%

 -
 500,000

 1,000,000
 1,500,000
 2,000,000
 2,500,000
 3,000,000
 3,500,000
 4,000,000
 4,500,000

FY 2020 FY 2021 FY 2022 FY 2023 FY 2024

SANITATION FEES

YTD

% OF YR



Page 4

 Total Budget  YTD Budget  YTD Actual  YTD Encum  YTD Total 
% of 

Budget  YTD Total 
% Total 

Year

Revenue:
Sales Tax 17,643,955$  11,762,637$  12,326,256$  -$                   12,326,256$  69.9% 12,173,347$  67.2%
Use Tax 2,500,000       1,666,667       3,416,627       -                     3,416,627       136.7% -                       0.0%
Gross Receipt Tax 1,582,000       1,054,667       1,094,081       -                     1,094,081       69.2% 1,105,508       68.0%
Licenses and Permits 256,700          171,133          211,756          -                     211,756          82.5% 206,711          80.3%
Intergovernmental 700,400          466,933          446,509          -                     446,509          63.8% 501,531          70.4%
Charges for Services 478,800          319,200          400,077          -                     400,077          83.6% 366,740          61.3%
Court Costs 160,000          106,667          128,543          -                     128,543          80.3% 126,113          66.3%
Police/Traffic Fines 460,000          306,667          238,182          -                     238,182          51.8% 270,022          66.6%
Parking Fines 68,200            45,467            34,280            -                     34,280            50.3% 33,295            69.5%
Other Fines 80,400            53,600            41,896            -                     41,896            52.1% 46,043            65.5%
Investment Income 150,000          100,000          1,897,403       -                     1,897,403       1264.9% 504,678          52.6%
Miscellaneous Income 875,700          583,800          771,588          -                     771,588          88.1% 379,584          50.4%
Transfers In 6,561,228       4,374,152       4,374,156       -                     4,374,156       66.7% 6,113,965       66.7%

Total 31,517,383$  21,011,590$  25,381,354$  -$                   25,381,354$  80.5% 21,827,537$  63.3%

Expenditures:
General Government 8,965,657$     5,977,105$     5,183,713$     172,918$      5,356,631$     59.7% 5,530,879$     67.4%
Public Safety 16,604,031     11,069,354     10,986,380     173,721        11,160,101     67.2% 10,484,657     67.9%
Street 2,051,398       1,367,599       1,158,852       17,881          1,176,733       57.4% 1,243,228       69.1%
Culture and Recreation 3,666,412       2,444,275       2,175,807       7,590             2,183,397       59.6% 2,172,687       66.7%
Transfers Out 4,189,369       2,792,913       2,792,751       -                     2,792,751       66.7% 2,674,087       66.7%
Reserves 1,194,800       796,533          -                       -                     -                       0.0% -                       N.A.

Total 36,671,667$  24,447,779$  22,297,503$  372,110$      22,669,613$  61.8% 22,105,538$  67.6%

Changes in Fund Balance:

Fund Balance 7/1 6,559,526$     

Net Revenue (Expense) 3,083,851       

Ending Fund Balance 9,643,377$    

67% of Year Lapsed

2023-24 Fiscal Year 2022-23 Fiscal Year

GENERAL FUND
Statement of Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances



Page 5

 Total Budget  YTD Budget  YTD Actual  YTD Encum  YTD Total 
% of 

Budget  YTD Total 
% Total 

Year

Revenue:
Wastewater Fees 6,007,344$     4,004,896$     4,115,608$  -$                   4,115,608$     68.5% 3,997,621$     80.2%
Investment Income -                        -                        -                      -                      -                        N.A. 27,077             ######
Debt Proceeds -                        -                        -                      -                      -                        N.A. -                        N.A.
Miscellaneous 30,000             20,000             135,776        -                      135,776          452.6% 165,437          812.7%

Total 6,037,344$    4,024,896$    4,251,384$  -$                   4,251,384$    70.4% 4,190,135$    83.7%

Expenditures:
Wastewater Plant 2,965,385$     1,976,923$     1,979,590$  952,203$      2,931,793$     98.9% 2,673,450$     100.2%
Wastewater Maint 861,009          574,006          530,899        (4,330)           526,569          61.2% 461,066          70.5%
BMA Expenses 27,735             18,490             27,730          -                      27,730             100.0% 27,870             N.A.
Transfers Out 1,646,975       1,097,983       1,097,987     -                      1,097,987       66.7% 1,095,054       76.0%
Reserves 88,790             59,193             -                      -                      -                        0.0% -                        N.A.

Total 5,589,894$    3,726,595$    3,636,206$  947,873$      4,584,079$    82.0% 4,257,440$    89.4%

Changes in Fund Balance:  

Fund Balance 7/1 2,904,457$  

Net Revenue (Expense) 615,178        

Ending Fund Balance 3,519,635$  

67% of Year Lapsed

2022-23 Fiscal Year 2021-22 Fiscal Year

COMBINED WASTEWATER OPERATING & BMA WASTEWATER FUNDS
Statement of Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances



Page 6

 Total Budget  YTD Budget  YTD Actual  YTD Encum  YTD Total 
% of 

Budget  YTD Total 
% Total 

Year

Revenue:
Water Fees 11,091,140$  7,394,093$     7,204,561$     -$                    7,204,561$     65.0% 8,248,585$     78.5%
Investment Income -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       N.A. 44,235            792.5%
Debt Proceeds -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       N.A. -                       N.A.
Miscellaneous -                       -                       749,416          -                       749,416          N.A. 2,683               265.6%

Total 11,091,140$  7,394,093$    7,953,977$    -$                    7,953,977$    71.7% 8,295,503$    78.9%

Expenditures:
Water Plant 3,930,908$     2,620,605$     2,173,856$     169,134$       2,342,990$     59.6% 2,557,939$     92.0%
Water Administration 403,611          269,074          255,284          22,035            277,319          68.7% 260,464          77.1%
Water Distribution 2,251,525       1,501,017       1,129,898       (26,254)          1,103,644       49.0% 1,204,302       89.2%
BMA Expenses 3,826,024       2,550,683       1,744,139       (15,530)          1,728,609       45.2% 4,070,705       136.5%
Transfers Out 2,585,280       1,723,520       1,723,524       -                       1,723,524       66.7% 1,712,926       76.5%
Reserves 294,520          196,347          -                       -                       -                       0.0% -                       N.A.

Total 13,291,868$  8,861,246$    7,026,701$    149,385$       7,176,086$    54.0% 9,806,336$    101.2%

Changes in Fund Balance:  

Fund Balance 7/1 7,243,671$     

Net Revenue (Expense) 927,276          

Ending Fund Balance 8,170,947$    

67% of Year Lapsed

2022-23 Fiscal Year 2021-22 Fiscal Year

COMBINED WATER OPERATING & BMA WATER FUNDS
Statement of Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances



Page 7

 Total Budget  YTD Budget  YTD Actual  YTD Encum  YTD Total 
% of 

Budget  YTD Total 
% Total 

Year

Revenue:
Collection Fees 6,055,185$     4,036,790$     4,118,800$       -$                   4,118,800$     68.0% 3,840,053$     66.4%
Investment Income -                       -                       -                          -                     -                       N.A. -                       N.A.
Miscellaneous 173,239          45,669            89,559               -                     89,559            51.7% 106,776          64.2%
Transfers In -                       -                       -                          -                     -                       N.A. -                       N.A.

Total 6,228,424$    4,082,459$    4,208,359$       -$                   4,208,359$    67.6% 3,946,829$    66.4%

Expenditures:
Sanitation 3,564,131$     2,376,087$     2,084,766$       154,247$      2,239,013$     62.8% 2,384,440$     73.0%
Transfers Out 2,649,730       1,766,487       1,766,490         -                     1,766,490       66.7% 1,764,966       66.7%
Reserves 134,997          89,998            -                          -                     -                       0.0% -                       N.A.

Total 6,348,858$    4,232,572$    3,851,256$       154,247$     4,005,503$    63.1% 4,149,406$    70.2%

Changes in Fund Balance:  

Fund Balance 7/1 322,482$          

Net Revenue (Expense) 357,103             

Ending Fund Balance 679,585$          

67% of Year Lapsed

2023-24 Fiscal Year 2022-23 Fiscal Year

SANITATION FUND
Statement of Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances



 Budget  Actuals  Percent of Budget 
Special Revenue Funds:

Economic Development Fund 1,902,083     1,291,564    68%
E-911 Fund 1,095,403     763,781       70%
Special Library Fund 123,970        181,898       147%
Special Museum Fund -                     40,148          N/A
Municipal Airport Fund -                     75,583          N/A
Harshfield Library Donation Fund -                     -                    N/A
Restricted Revenue Fund 50,000          81,945          164%
Golf Course Memorial Fund -                     26,100          N/A
CDBG-COVID -                     -                    N/A
ARPA -                     -                    N/A
Justice Assistance Grant Fund -                     7,185            N/A
Neighborhood Park Fund -                     -                    N/A
Cemetery Care Fund 2,600            1,766            68%

Debt Service Fund 4,818,069     4,159,875    86%

Capital Project Funds:
Sales Tax Capital Improvement Fund 3,580,030     2,759,313    77%
Park Capital Improvement Fund -                     -                    N/A
Wastewater Capital Improvement Fund -                     17,200          N/A
Wastewater Regulatory Capital Fund -                     -                    N/A
City Hall Capital Improvement Fund 47,880          47,880          100%
Storm Drainage Capital Improvement Fund -                     3,406            N/A
Community Development Block Grant Fund -                     219,087       N/A
2008B G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                    N/A
2009 G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                    N/A
2010 G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                    N/A
2012 G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                    N/A
2014 G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                    N/A
2014B G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                    N/A
2015 G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                    N/A
2017 G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                    N/A
2018A G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                    N/A
2018B G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                    N/A
2018C G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                    N/A
2019A G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                    N/A
2019B G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                    N/A
2021A G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                    N/A
2022 G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                    N/A
2023 G.O. Bond Fund 6,900,000     6,900,000    100%

Proprietary Funds:
Adams Golf Course Operating Fund 663,654        468,295       71%
Sooner Pool Operating Fund 72,245          48,165          67%
Frontier Pool Operating Fund 94,205          62,805          67%
Municipal Airport Operating 585,975        490,060       84%

Internal Service Funds:
Worker's Compensation Fund 93,460          69,973          75%
Health Insurance Fund 3,757,814     3,713,803    99%
Auto Collision Insurance Fund 75,000          53,257          71%
Stabilization Reserve Fund 1,291,774     861,190       67%
Capital Improvement Reserve Fund 6,998,023     5,374,120    77%

Mausoleum Trust Fund -                     -                    N/A

67% of Year Lapsed

ALL OTHER FUNDS
Revenue Budget Report - Budget Basis



 Budget  Actuals  Percent of Budget 

Special Revenue Funds:
Economic Development Fund 5,416,131     1,745,294    32%
E-911 Fund 1,226,020     769,422        63%
Special Library Fund 220,970        121,141        55%
Special Museum Fund 51,500           21,519          42%
Municipal Airport Fund 28,508           -                     0%
Harshfield Library Donation Fund 382,568        10,890          3%
Restricted Revenue Fund 295,441        106,039        36%
Golf Course Memorial Fund 65,940           52,414          79%
CDBG-COVID -                     -                     N/A
ARPA 1,000,000     666,669        67%
Justice Assistance Grant Fund 7,619             -                     0%
Neighborhood Park Fund 29,599           -                     0%
Cemetery Care Fund 12,303           200               2%

Debt Service Fund 4,820,069     1,709,124    35%

Capital Project Funds:
Sales Tax Capital Improvement Fund 5,891,206     1,104,630    19%
Park Capital Improvement Fund -                     -                     N/A
Wastewater Capital Improvement Fund 27,542           -                     0%
Wastewater Regulatory Capital Fund 554,842        23,508          4%
City Hall Capital Improvement Fund 170,362        -                     0%
Storm Drainage Capital Improvement Fund 55,577           7,447            13%
Community Development Block Grant Fund -                     -                     N/A
2008B G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                     N/A
2009 G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                     N/A
2010 G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                     N/A
2012 G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                     N/A
2014 G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                     N/A
2014B G.O. Bond Fund 3,885             -                     0%
2015 G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                     N/A
2017 G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                     N/A
2018A G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                     N/A
2018B G.O. Bond Fund 28,659           -                     0%
2018C G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                     N/A
2019A G.O. Bond Fund 326,564        -                     0%
2019B G.O. Bond Fund 341,460        -                     0%
2021A G.O. Bond Fund 521,244        -                     0%
2022 G.O. Bond Fund 4,880,960     1,782,113    37%
2023 G.O. Bond Fund 6,900,000     75,400          1%

Proprietary Funds:
Adams Golf Course Operating Fund 665,922        483,822        73%
Sooner Pool Operating Fund 79,562           16,895          21%
Frontier Pool Operating Fund 94,230           29,002          31%
Municipal Airport Operating 670,036        427,212        64%

Internal Service Funds:
Worker's Compensation Fund 430,000        114,885        27%
Health Insurance Fund 4,079,068     3,754,412    92%
Auto Collision Insurance Fund 443,559        48,531          11%
Stabilization Reserve Fund 11,933,651   -                     0%
Capital Improvement Reserve Fund 12,390,050   2,647,945    21%

Mausoleum Trust Fund 7,791             -                     0%

ALL OTHER FUNDS
Expenditure Budget Report - Budget Basis

67% of Year Lapsed



 Beginning of Year  Change  Current 

Special Revenue Funds:
Economic Development Fund 3,705,288                 (152,292)      3,552,996     
E-911 Fund 214,997                    (4,932)           210,065        
Special Library Fund 290,970                    88,694          379,664        
Special Museum Fund 139,059                    18,629          157,688        
Municipal Airport Fund 80,702                       48,346          129,048        
Harshfield Library Donation Fund 463,144                    (8,390)           454,754        
Restricted Revenue Fund 409,319                    (7,397)           401,922        
Golf Course Memorial Fund 45,891                       (21,514)         24,377           
CDBG-COVID -                                 -                     -                     
ARPA 1,762,952                 (666,669)      1,096,283     
Justice Assistance Grant Fund 7,619                         7,185            14,804           
Neighborhood Park Fund 60,222                       -                     60,222           
Cemetery Care Fund 10,055                       1,566            11,621           

Debt Service Fund 3,726,110                 2,450,751    6,176,861     

Capital Project Funds:
Sales Tax Capital Improvement Fund 3,737,112                 1,484,229    5,221,341     
Park Capital Improvement Fund -                                 -                     -                     
Wastewater Capital Improvement Fund 162,540                    (57,799)         104,741        
Wastewater Regulatory Capital Fund 840,690                    (24,431)         816,259        
City Hall Capital Improvement Fund 125,618                    47,880          173,498        
Storm Drainage Capital Improvement Fund 57,026                       (4,041)           52,985           
Community Development Block Grant Fund -                                 211,387        211,387        
2008B G.O. Bond Fund -                                 -                     -                     
2009 G.O. Bond Fund -                                 -                     -                     
2010 G.O. Bond Fund -                                 -                     -                     
2012 G.O. Bond Fund -                                 -                     -                     
2014 G.O. Bond Fund 7,686                         -                     7,686             
2014B G.O. Bond Fund 3,886                         -                     3,886             
2015 G.O. Bond Fund 12,444                       -                     12,444           
2017 G.O. Bond Fund 56,485                       -                     56,485           
2018A G.O. Bond Fund 52,547                       -                     52,547           
2018B G.O. Bond Fund 46,204                       -                     46,204           
2018C G.O. Bond Fund -                                 -                     -                     
2019A G.O. Bond Fund 327,431                    -                     327,431        
2019B G.O. Bond Fund 397,717                    (35,219)         362,498        
2021A G.O. Bond Fund 526,494                    -                     526,494        
2022A G.O. Bond Fund 6,765,084                 (2,485,796)   4,279,288     
2023 G.O. Bond Fund -                                 6,897,755    6,897,755     

Proprietary Funds:
Adams Golf Course Operating Fund 19,376                       17,176          36,552           
Sooner Pool Operating Fund 21,830                       31,357          53,187           
Frontier Pool Operating Fund 23,562                       33,333          56,895           
Municipal Airport Operating 309,066                    69,913          378,979        

Internal Service Funds:
Worker's Compensation Fund 196,884                    (37,492)         159,392        
Health Insurance Fund 45,564                       (40,509)         5,055             
Auto Collision Insurance Fund 509,867                    (33,398)         476,469        
Stabilization Reserve Fund 11,933,651               861,190        12,794,841   
Capital Improvement Reserve Fund 17,068,585               4,191,039    21,259,624   

Mausoleum Trust Fund 8,164                         -                     8,164             

ALL OTHER FUNDS
Fund Balance Report - Modified Cash Basis

67% of Year Lapsed



 

 
 
 
 

 
 
FROM: Jason Muninger, CFO/City Clerk 
 
SUBJECT: Financial Statement Explanatory Information 
 
 
GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
The purpose of this memo is to provide some insight as to the construction of the attached financial 
statements and to provide some guidance as to their use. 
 
The format of the attached financial statements is intended to highlight our most important revenue 
sources, provide sufficient detail on major operating funds, and provide a high level overview of all other 
funds. The level of detail presented is sufficient to assist the City Council in conducting their fiduciary 
obligations to the City without creating a voluminous document that made the execution of that duty 
more difficult. 
 
This document provides three different types of analyses for the Council’s use. The first is an analysis 
of revenue vs budgeted expectations. This allows the Council to see how the City’s revenues are 
performing and to have a better idea if operational adjustments are necessary.  
 
The second analysis compares expenditures to budget. This allows the Council to ensure that the 
budgetary plan that was set out for the City is being followed and that Staff is making the necessary 
modifications along the way.  
 
The final analysis shows the fund balance for each fund of the City. This is essentially the “cash” balance 
for most funds. However, some funds include short term receivables and payables depending on the 
nature of their operation. With very few exceptions, all funds must maintain positive fund balance by 
law. Any exceptions will be noted where they occur. 
 
These analyses are presented in the final manner: 
 

Highlights: 
The Highlights section presents a 5 year snap shot of the performance of the City’s 4 most 
important revenue sources. Each bar represents the actual amounts earned in each year through 
the period of the report. Each dash represents the percent of the year’s revenue that had been 
earned through that period. The current fiscal year will always represent the percent of the budget 
that has been earned, while all previous fiscal years will always represent the percent of the actual 
amount earned. This analysis highlights and compares not only amounts earned, but gives a better 
picture of how much should have been earned in order to meet budget for the year. 
 

  



Major Operating Funds: 
The City’s major operating funds are presented in greater detail than the remainder of the City’s 
funds. These funds include the General, Wastewater Operating, BMA – Wastewater, Water 
Operating, BMA – Water, and Sanitation. Due to the interrelated nature of the Wastewater 
Operating/BMA – Wastewater and the Water Operating/BMA – Water funds, these have been 
combined into Wastewater Combined and Water Combined funds. This should provide a better 
picture of the overall financial condition of these operating segments by combining revenues, 
operating expenses, and financing activities in a single report. 
 
Other Funds: 
All other funds of the City are reported at a high level. These funds are often created for a limited 
purpose, limited duration, and frequently contain only a one-time revenue source. This high level 
overview will provide Council with sufficient information for a summary review. Any additional 
information that is required after that review is available. 
 

These condensed financial statement should provide sufficient information for the City Council to 
perform its fiduciary responsibility while simplifying the process. All supplementary, detailed 
information is available for the Council’s use at any time upon request. Additionally, any other funds 
that the Council chooses to classify as a Major Operating fund can be added to that section to provide 
greater detail in the future. 



1 Investigate programs to recruit non-traditional employees and within schools. HR 10/23 100%

2
Within six months of adoption of Strategic plan, investigate potential vacation 
buyback program.

HR 10/23 100%

3 Implement a job swap program for employees. HR 10/23 100%
4 Hold employee appreciation luncheons twice yearly. HR 07/24 100%

5
Investigate ways to implement a flex-hours or work from home program for 
applicable employees.

HR 04/24 100%

1 Develop a committee to research best practices and accreditation programs. Admin 10/23 100% Committee has met and is gathering data.

2
Develop and implement a performance and reward-based evaluation process for 
general employees by July 1, 2023 with intent to negotiate this process for 
uniformed groups in the future.

HR 07/23 100%

3
Re-evaluate 311 and Enterprise Asset Management (E.A.M.) to determine how we 
can integrate these systems into our operating departments.

IT 04/24 50% Reevaluating options for software.

4
Revise and update our website using newest technologies and integrations to 
improve citizen satisfaction and e-gov capabilities.

CCO 10/24 50%

1
Create and publish annual digital report on overall City and departmental 
achievements, progress, and goals. Summary of report to be circulated in utility bill. 

Admin 09/24 20%
Changed the date to match up with our fiscal 
year.  Original completion date was 4/24.

2
Create and distribute an annual survey to obtain citizen feedback and requests for all 
City departments. Individual departments may also be surveyed individually as part 
of a larger survey plan.

Admin 04/24 25%

3
Create and distribute survey for employees to rate their department and the City as 
an overall employer by July 1, 2023.

HR 07/23 100%

4
Develop feedback cards for golf course, library and other City services as 
appropriate.

Admin 10/23 95%
All ideas for feedback cards have been 
submitted and are being reviewed.

5
Continue to enhance, improve, and promote City Beat and grow subscription base by 
10%.

CCO 04/24 100%

1 Develop and adopt formal policies pertaining to:

BARTLESVILLE NEXT PROGRESS REPORT - APRIL 2024

FINANCIAL STRENGTH AND OPERATIONAL EXCELLENCE
Focus on staff recruitment, retention, development, department collaborations, and safety programs to improve workplace culture and morale.

Improve and modernize our workplace including seeking accreditations for operational excellence, developing a performance and reward-based evaluation process, 

Develop annual communications and feedback systems to include a standard report to citizens, community survey, and employee survey.

Adopt governance best practices relating to debt, financial targets, multi-year plans, and a comprehensive Council handbook.

1 of 5



BARTLESVILLE NEXT PROGRESS REPORT - APRIL 2024

a Formal debt policy based on GFOA authoritative guidance. A&F 10/23 100%

b
Formal policy requiring that utility rate studies be conducted at least every 5 years 
and requiring Council to utilize periodic rate studies to adopt multiyear rate plans. 

A&F 10/23 100%

c
Formal capital planning policy requiring that a 5-year Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) 
be prepared by Staff and adopted by the City Council concurrently with the budget 
every year. 

A&F 10/23 100%

2
Future budgets should include 5-year projections of revenue and expenditures for 
major operating funds to assist the Council and Staff in better planning for the 
future. 

A&F 07/24 35%
Will contact Crawford & Assoc.  If they are 
unable to provide service, then implementation 
may be delayed.

3
City Council will adopt a City Council Handbook that will help to guide current and 
future City Councils. City Manager will work with Mayor to schedule a Council 
workshop to discuss this item within one year of adoption of Strategic Plan. 

Admin 04/24 100%

1

The intent of the asset management program is to compile age, material, condition, 
and service life of the City’s infrastructure (facilities, airport, streets, storm drain, 
wastewater, water, signals, signs, etc.) into ESRI’s GIS software to aid in planning 
improvement priority and capital needs.

Eng

a
Staff will determine what items need to be tracked, what data exists, and what data 
needs to be collected

Eng 10/23 95% Waiting on asset management software

b Select consultant to collect and populate data into ESRI. Eng
i Facilities, streets, storm drains, wastewater and water Eng 10/24 25%
ii Signs and signals Eng 10/25 50%

1 Improve road conditions as captured by Pavement Condition Index (PCI). Eng
a Complete PCI update currently under contract. Eng 04/23 100%

b
Once complete, develop several PCI score scenarios (maintain existing, desired PCI in 
5 years and desired PCI in 10 years) with capital investment requirements – 6 
months.

Eng 06/23 100%

1
Update the city’s comprehensive plan and other long-range plans utilizing accepted 
best practices (i.e. transportation, storm drainage, utilities, etc.). 

Comm Dev

EFFECTIVE INFRASTRUCTURE NETWORK
Develop Asset Management Program for infrastructure.

Improve road conditions as captured by Pavement Condition Index (PCI).

ECONOMIC VITALITY
Reevaluate our development regulatory policies to ensure all rules, regulations, and processes align with best practices and reflect the character of our community.

2 of 5



BARTLESVILLE NEXT PROGRESS REPORT - APRIL 2024

a Staff will develop an RFP to select a consultant. Comm Dev 06/23 100%

b Present recommendations to the Council Comm Dev 10/24 5%
Start date of project was delayed, so end date 
has been adjusted accordingly.

2
Update zoning, subdivision, and other ordinances and codes which regulate private 
development and land use following the updated comprehensive land use plan. 

Comm Dev 06/25 0%

1
Identify economic development partners and assign City employee to act as 
economic development liaison. Liaison shall act as conduit between economic 
development partners, developer, and City departments. 

Admin 06/23 100%

2
Convene a meeting with all economic development partners to determine how best 
to support their efforts and to define the expectations for all parties.

Admin 12/23 100%

3 Ongoing coordination between liaison and economic development partners. Admin 100%

1 Identify community partners who employ and recruit young professionals. Admin 09/23 100%

2
Engage with community partners to learn how the City can attract young 
professionals and families 

Admin 01/24 25% Scheduling meeting with COP/P66 leadership

3
Examine ways to make the community more enticing for businesses and restaurants 
that attract young professionals and families 

Admin 01/24 0%

4
Work closely with BDA and Visit Bartlesville to promote their efforts and 
accomplishments 

Admin 01/24 0%

1 Coordinate a multi-cultural group to highlight the diverse cultures in our community. Library 01/24 100%

a Use this group to support/identify cultural needs that are unmet.
b Partner/support this group for an annual event.

2 Allocate city resources for support group (such as facilities, properties, venues, etc.) Library 01/25 0%

Collaborate with economic development partners and experts to optimize development.

Develop and implement strategies to retain and attract young professionals and families to Bartlesville.

COMMUNITY CHARACTER
Explore opportunities to embrace the unique cultures of our community.

Develop and maintain healthy lifestyle options as a segment of our parks, recreation and transportation systems.

3 of 5



BARTLESVILLE NEXT PROGRESS REPORT - APRIL 2024

1
As part of the update to the City’s comprehensive and other plans identified in 
Economic Vitality, update the Parks Masterplan to ensure that lifestyle options and 
parks and recreation systems are meeting the needs of the public.

Comm Dev 10/24 20% Tied to the comprehensive plan.

2
Create a Trails/Multi-model plan that incorporates existing assets and plans such as 
bicycle plan.

CD/S&T 0% Tied to the comprehensive plan.

a Review, evaluate, and update the Bicycle Plan CD/S&T 10/24 0% Tied to the comprehensive plan.

1
Address vandalism and criminal activities in our community spaces, including 
destruction or defacement of public restrooms, violations of park curfews, etc.

PW/PD

a
Improve security measures at public restrooms using automatic locks combined with 
motion and smoke detectors

Pub Works 04/24 95% 9 of 10 bathrooms installed

b Police to respond to all calls at public restrooms generated by new systems PD 04/24 100%

i
Offenders, especially repeat offenders, will be prosecuted for vandalism, arson, 
trespassing, etc.

PD 04/24 100%

2
Coordinate citizen volunteer efforts to supplement our maintenance efforts and to 
improve the appearance of our City. These could include periodic clean up days, 
adopt a mile programs, adopt a path programs, etc. 

CD/PW 07/23 100% KBB established.

a Staff to list and prioritize possible programs. CD/PW 01/24 0%
b Adopt formal policy for selected program(s). CD/PW 04/24 0%

c Advertise, promote, operate, and publicly report on the success of this program. CD/PW 10/24 0%

3 Establish Neighborhood Watch and Sentinel Program PD 10/23 100%

4 Finalize implementation of and launch Software 311 and City App Comm Dev 04/24 95% Reevaluating options for software.

5 Create a list of minimum maintenance intervals for our parks and rights-of-way. Pub Works 07/23 100%

1 Child Care: Admin

a Collaborate with local groups to help find solutions to the local child care shortage. Admin 04/24 70%

Partner with community groups to discuss, evaluate and report on existing needs and potential solution that address: Child Care, Housing, Homelessness, and Others 

Ensure and maintain clean, bright, vibrant community spaces.

EMERGING ISSUES

4 of 5



BARTLESVILLE NEXT PROGRESS REPORT - APRIL 2024

b
Help advocate for reform of child care regulations that act as barriers to new 
facilities.

Admin 70%

2 Housing: Comm Dev

a
Evaluate local housing supply and demand to determine gaps in local housing stock 
by price level.

Comm Dev 04/24 100%

3 Homelessness: PD

a
Collaborate with local groups seeking to reduce homelessness including “United 
Way” and “B the Light”.

Admin/CD 04/24 100%

b
Review existing laws and enforcement policies and retrain police officers to better 
handle crimes committed by the homeless.

Admin/PD 04/24 100%

c
Utilize the mental health team data from PD to better understand our homeless 
population, how many homeless are in Bartlesville, and why they are here.

Admin/PD 04/24 100%

5 of 5



Agenda Item 7.g.i.





Item 7.g.ii.



Page 1 of 2 
 

Agenda Item ___ 
3/27/2024 

Prepared by Micah Siemers 
      Engineering Department 

 
 

BID REVIEW RECOMMENDATION 
 
I. SUBJECT, ATTACHMENTS, AND BACKGROUND 

A. SUBJECT: 

Discuss and take possible action to award Bid No. 2023-2024-014 Construct Taxilane; AIP 3-
40-0007-015-2024; ODAA BVO-24-FS.  The total budgeted amount for this project is 
$1,531,325.00.  (See Section II, C. Budget Amount, for additional budget information). 

B. ATTACHMENTS: 

Parkhill Recommendation of Contract Award 
Bid Tabulation 
Exhibit B-2 Project Costs 
Hangar Development Plan with Taxilanes Highlighted 
 

II. PROJECT DESCRIPTION, STAFF COMMENTS AND ANALYSIS, AND BUDGET 
AMOUNT. 

A. PROJECT DESCRIPTION: 

The next phase in airport improvements involves construction of new taxilanes to facilitate future 
hangar development.  The project will include an east/west taxiway extending east of the existing 
main taxiway located to the north of the terminal building.  This taxilane has been designed far 
enough north of the terminal building for potential future expansion of the terminal/FBO apron 
and multiple future hangar sites.  This taxiway could be extended further east in the future as the 
airport develops.  Also included within the scope is a north/south taxiway running south from the 
new east/west taxiway.  This taxiway will open up development of more of the airport property for 
mid-sized hangars.  

B. COMMENTS AND ANALYSIS: 

The bids were structured to include Base Bid Schedule 1 for the east/west taxilane, Base Bid 
Schedule 2 for the north/south taxilane, and Alternate No. 1 for additional pavement thickness on 
taxilanes to facilitate larger aircraft.  The project was advertised in the local newspaper, Dodge 
Reports, E-Plan Bidding, Southwest Construction News, and The Blue Book Building & 
Construction Network.  Seven (7) contractors showed interest and attended the mandatory pre-bid 
meeting and five (5) contractors submitted bids.  Bid amounts with both base bid schedules and 
Alternate No. 1 are as follows: 

 R&L Construction (Tulsa, OK) ....................................... $1,531,325.00 

 Contech, Inc. (Broken Arrow, OK) ................................. $1,739,362.50 

 Tri-Star Construction, LLC (Tulsa, OK) ......................... $1,967,000.00 

 Paragon Contractors, LLC (Tulsa, OK) .......................... $2,011,424.00 

8.



Page 2 of 2 
 

 Bright Lighting, Inc. (Tulsa, OK) ................................... $2,484,551.94 

The bids were evaluated for addendums, bid bonds, line-item prices, and arithmetic.  Minor errors 
were found in two of the bids, but this did not change the order of the bids.  The bids all had the 
necessary components.         

While neither the City of Bartlesville, nor Parkhill, has worked with R&L Construction, that have 
shown evidence that they are qualified for this project and have the financial capability to 
complete this project.  The City’s airport consultant, Parkhill, has recommended awarding the 
contract to R&L Construction as well.  Parkhill’s recommendation letter is included with this bid 
review recommendation. 

C. BUDGET AMOUNT: 

The budget for this project is based upon available FAA NPE funds, FAA AIG/BIL funds, ODAA 
funds, and the City’s matching funds in the airport fund.  FAA funds require a 10% sponsor match 
and ODAA funds require a 5% sponsor match.  The overall budget for this project includes the 
design services, contract administration services, grant administration services, the hangar 
development plan already completed, and surveying services along with the actual construction 
contract.  Essentially the FAA and ODAA funds will cover the vast majority of all planning and 
design services required for this project up to this point along with the construction contract with 
R&L Construction.  Therefore, the shares for each are as follows: 

 State Share (ODAA)    $1,187,818.75 
 FAA Share (AIG and NPE)   $737,000.00 
 Sponsor Share (City Airport Fund)  $101,306.25 
 Total Project Cost    $2,026,125.00 

Sufficient funds are available in the Airport Fund to cover the City’s share. 

III. RECOMMENDED ACTION 

Based upon Parkhill’s recommendation, staff recommends that the City Council award Bid No. 
2023-2024-014; AIP 3-40-0007-017-2024; ODAA BVO-24-FS to R&L Construction in the 
amount of $1,531,325.00, subject to receipt of the FAA grant and ODAA grant. 

 

 
 
              
            Council Member or Staff Member     Date 
 

/s/ Billie Roane March 27, 2024



9.



10.






















































	City Council Agenda April 1, 2024
	Agenda Item 5.i. Donate Life Month April 2024 (1)
	Official Proclamation
	Donate Life Month – April 2024
	WHEREAS, one of the most meaningful gifts that a human being can bestow upon another is the gift of life; and
	WHEREAS, approximately 559 Oklahomans received a life-saving or enhancing organ transplant last year, and
	WHEREAS, a new patient is added to the national patient transplant list every 9 minutes, and
	WHEREAS, over 106,000 men, women, and children are currently on the national waiting list for organ transplantation, with more than 600 in the Oklahoma; and
	WHEREAS, an average of 17 people died each day last year awaiting an organ transplant that did not come in time; and
	WHEREAS, Oklahoma has a registry system allowing all residents to register their wish to save lives through organ and tissue donation at registerme.org/campaign/btph or by calling toll-free 1-888-580-5680 or have a heart put on their driver’s license;...
	WHEREAS, the LifeShare Transplant Donor Services of Oklahoma is the nonprofit organization formed to educate Northeastern Oklahoma residents about donation, increase the number of registered organ donors and eliminate barriers to donation; and
	WHEREAS, the State supports this organization’s life-saving mission; and
	WHEREAS, everyone is a potential organ, eye, and tissue donor,
	NOW THEREFORE,  I, Dale W. Copeland, Mayor, do hereby officially proclaim the month of April 2024 as “Donate Life Month” to honor all those who have made the decision to donate life, to focus attention on the extreme need for donation and to encourage...
	IN WITNESS WHEREOF, we hereunto set our hands and caused the Official Seal of the City of Bartlesville, Oklahoma, to be affixed this 1st day of April, in the year of our Lord two thousand and twenty-four.
	Dale W. Copeland, Mayor


	Agenda Item 5.ii. Autism Awareness & Acceptance Month April 2024
	Agenda Item 5.iii. Child Abuse Prevention Month April 2024
	Dale Copeland, Mayor

	Agenda Item 5.iv. Civitan Proclamation 2024
	Agenda Item 5.v. Pilot Club - Heartland District of Pilot Internation 4-20-24
	Agenda Item 7.a.i. City Council Minutes March 4, 2024
	Agenda Item 7.b.i. Butler appointment to Adams Golf Operating Committee
	Agenda Item 7.b.i. Costales appointment to Adams Golf Operating Committee
	Agenda Item 7.b.i. McCollough appointment to Adams Golf Operating Committee
	Agenda Item 7.c.i. Honorary Street Naming_Jim Hess
	Agenda Item 7.c.ii. Council Cover Memo_CDBG 2021 5th St_w_Attachments
	Council Cover Memo_CDBG 2021 5th St_w_Attachments2.0
	Council Cover Memo_CDBG 2021 5th St_w_Attachments2.0
	Council Cover Memo_CDBG 2021 5th St_w_Attachments2.0
	Council Cover Memo_CDBG 2021 5th St_w_Attachments2.0
	IMAGES REVISED
	IMAGES
	IMAGES Part 2

	AERIAL IMAGES
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5
	Slide Number 6
	Slide Number 7



	Public Hearing Minutes_Summary_CDBG 2021 5th St


	Council Cover Memo_CDBG 2021 5th St_w_Attachments
	Council Cover Memo_CDBG 2021 5th St_w_Attachments
	Agenda for Public Hearing 3-5-2024 CDBG 5th St Project Closeout
	PUBLIC HEARING
	TUESDAY, MARCH 5, 2024
	5:30 p.m.
	AGENDA

	Certification of Posting of Public Notice Signed_Notarized
	Affidavit of Publication
	RESOLUTION closeout



	Agenda Item 7.c.iii. FAA AIG Grant Resolution_AIG 3-40-0007-018-2024
	Agenda Item 7.c.iv. FAA NPE Grant Resolution_AIP 3-40-0007-019-2024
	Agenda Item 7.c.v. Resolution Gen fund Ins Fund
	Gen fund Ins Fund Council Cover Letter Template
	Ins Gen Fund Reso 2024

	Agenda Item 7.c.vi. Resolution for Ins Fund
	Ins Fund Council Cover Letter Template
	Health Ins Fund Reso 2024

	Agenda Item 7.d.i. NextGen 911 Services Interlocal Agreement
	Agenda Item 7.d.ii. Interlocal agreement with County_Shared Maintenace Work
	Agenda Item 7.d.iii. YMCA Pool Report and Agreement
	Agenda Item 7.d.iv. Artesian Agreement for Airport
	Agenda Item 7.d.v. ODAA Grant Application_ODAA BVO-24-FS
	Agenda Item 7.e.i. Financials
	Financials Council Cover Letter Template
	P8 February 2024 Financials
	P8 February 2024 Financials
	Cover
	TOC
	Highlights
	General Fund
	Wastewater
	Water
	Sanitation Operate
	OF - Revenue
	OF - Expense
	OF - Fund Balance

	Financial Statement Explanatory Memo


	Agenda Item 7.f.i. April NEXT Report
	Mar 24

	Agenda Item 7.g.i. 2023-2024-014-Construct-Taxilane
	Agenda Item 7.g.ii. 2023-2024-015-Battery-Operated-Jaws-and-Cutter-Set-with-Battery-and-Charger
	Agenda Item 8. Bid Review Recommendation 2023-2024-014
	Agenda Item 9. Bid Review Recommendation 2023-2024-015
	Agenda Item 10. Sidewalk Ordinance



